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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date o f t ranscription 12/18/2004

The following information relates to the attached
transcript of a recorded interview pertaining to this

investigation:
DATE OF TAPE: December 13, 2004
IDENTIFIER: | |
PARTICIPANTS: MSP D/SGT|
FBI SA|
Subject]

Investigation on 12/13/2004 a Bay City, Michigan

File

Datedictated 12/13/2004
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 02/16/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Agency
Contact: SA|

Approved By
Drafted By{

Case ID #: Pending)
Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM;

Synopsis: To update file.

Enclosures: Attached to this report and contained in a separate
1A envelope is a declination letter from AUSA

Details: The purpose of this EC is to document a 02/15/2005,

conversation with AUSA |regarding his decision to
decline prosecution of | in connection with
the arson at the Marquiss furniture in Essexville, MI, where

Wickstrom held Christian Identity bible studies. The two reasons

given by AUS for the declination are listed as "suspect
to-be prosecute v other authority," and "no federal offense
evident."

AUSAl noted that the Declination of Prosecution
letter he sent to the FBI, dated 12/22/2004, pertained to both

and Wickstrom, even though]| [name is not on
the document.
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Case ID #3 Pc;;d_;.;.x:j

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To update file.

Enclosure: Copy of a nine-page article, dated Winter 2004, £from
the Intelllgence Report Maga21ne

Detalls. The purpose of this EC is to update the captioned file.

Enclosed to this communication and contained in a
separate 1A envelope is a nine-page article about James
Wickstrom, dated Winter, 2004, from the Intelligence Report
Magazine.

The artlcle is titled, "Return of the Pastor. It
hlghllghts how Christian Identlty Preacher James chkstrom has
been preaching hate for decades. The author continues by
highlighting how Wickstrom's new role with an Aryan National
offshoot group could make the fire-breathing Pastor one of the
radical rights' most influential figure.

The magazine contains several photographs of Wickstrom.
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RETURN OF THE PASTOR

James Wickstram, ane of Christian Identity’s mostvicious

firebrands, has been relatively quiet far years.

Naw that may be changing

BY SUSY BUCHANAN

osed before a backdrop of a Tennessee forest, Jim Wickstrom spews his life history into
a camera. It’s late June, and Wickstrom has just been a victim of another attack, one of
the many he claims to have suffered at the hands of his enemies over the years.

The latest assault on the “preacher” came this June 21 when someone burned down a
furniture store in Hampton Township, Mich., where Wickstrom has been preaching “Racial
Covenant Christian Identity” for the past three years.

Many of the audio- and videotapes he peddles over the Internet, representing his life’s work,
were burned or damaged in the fire. Wickstrom quickly put out a call over the Internet to
sympathizers, stcumping for financial aid in order to continue his ministry.

And so it is not surprising that just days after the blaze, the prolific pastor already is taking
steps to replenish his media inventory. After all, the man has a business to run, and preaching
violence against Jews is his bread and butter.

At 62, Wickstrom is bloated and shifty-eyed. The oversized aviator glasses he wears mag-
nify his jowl and the general downward slope of his features. For this video, Wickstrom has
encased his sausage-like physique in a red polo shirt, eschewing the formal sports coar and
tie he favors at racist rallies. The film is a relatively calm accounting of his life and views as
he outlines his career as a racist with arms folded over his bright red belly. Under these sedate
circumstances, Wickstrom looks more like the Snap-On Tools salesman he was in the early
*70s, in the time before his anger found an outlet — and an accelerant — in the theology of
Christian Identity.

But “Wickstrom Unplugged” doesn’t last for long.

Almost on cue, a voice off camera asks Wickstrom what he thinks should be done with
the Jews, a topic that invariably brings out the Hulk in him.

Wickstrom’s hands begin to gesticulate, his face reddens, and he launches into a tirade that
demonstrates what has made him one of Christian Identity’s most popular and volatile speakers.

“I'd like to see these Jews all be brought to the va [Veterans Administration hospital] and
wooden chairs be put down on the lawn. Tie the Jews in. Bring these veterans down who_
have been murilated, physically mutilated, their lives ruined without the opportunity of a
family or children, and give them baseball bats and let them beat these Jews to death! Every
one of them!” he bellows.

WINTER 2004 s
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“Take these chairs and Jews after
they're beaten to death, throw ‘em in
the wood chipper! And from the wood
chipper let the remains go intw a big
incinerary truck, which is right behind
the wood chipper, and give them the
holocaust they rightdy deserve!”

“Even the women and children?” he’s
asked by his interviewer.

“Take ‘em all)” he snarls. “Take em
all and let none remain!”

Wickstrom Redux

Wickstrom’s an aging, old-school
Christian Identity racist whose career
has seen better days. For a time in the
carly '8os, Wickstrom was one of the
hoteest haters in the country, preaching
Yahweh'’s word across the Grear Plains
and the upper Midwest and stirring up
an army.

America’s farmers, in the grip of a
devastating crisis, were a vulnerable
audience. The government had urged
them to expand their operations, then
slapped them with a spike in interest
rates. Banks called in loans. People lost
farms, and Wickstrom's hard-core com-
bination of antigovernment teachings
and Bible-based racism drew substan-
tial crowds. The fervently ant-Semitic,
antgovernment Posse Comitatus grew
in strength.

Wickstrom told them their economic
hardship was part of a plan to destroy
God’s chosen people — the “White, West-
ern Race” — and pointed to the Bible.

He told them debts and raxes were
illegitimate and pointed to the Consti-
tution. His conviction and passion were
often mesmerizing.

But his message would start to decay.

Most of the legal advice he gave farm-
ers created more problems than it solved.
The “rownship” of Tigerton Dells that
he and other Posse members dreamed
up was seized by the very government its
residents were plotting to overthrow.

Wickstrom and other Posse leaders
would be arrested and incarcerared. The
Posse began to fade, making way for the
militia movement that would follow. The
momentum it once had in its heyday,
when Posse sympathizers numbered close
1o 50,000, came and went.

i0 INTELLIGENCE REPORT

Despite his diminished presence in the
movement today, Wickstrom's influence
over the past 30 years has been consider-
able. And by the look of things, “Wick,”
as he is known, is not dene vert.

Wickstrom is attempting to emerge
from 15 relatively dormant years by very
publicly aligning himself with onc ot two
factions of the neo-Nazi Arvan Nations
vying for control of Richard Butler’s lead-
erless followers. Since Butler’s death on
Sept. 8, Charles Juba's version of Aryan
Nations, based in Pennsylvania and by
far the weaker of the two, is clamoring
tor respect they hope an association with
Wickstrom will bring and have named
him their religious leader. Against most
of the evidence, Wickserom and Juba are
now claiming that they are the anointed
heirs of Butler and righcful owners of the
well-known Arvan Nations name, even
though Butler publicly excommunicared
Juba (see story, p. 6) from his Idaho-
based organization in January 2000 and
never took him back.

“My work as World Chaplain is only
beginning, and I look forward to being a
part of the Aryan Nadons of tomorrow,”
Wickstrom wrote in an Oct. 11 press
release in which he claims his appoint-
ment was part of a secret plan formulated
vears ago by Pastor Butler himself. In the
statement, Wickstrom proclaims Juba's
group the legitimate successor to Butler,
and blames the confusion over which
faction was the true Arvan Nations on
a clever “cloak and dagger” operation
designed to confuse the enemy while the
organization was rebuilt.

Although it’s doubtful he'll succeed
in filling the shoes of one of the coun-

try’s most notorious neo-Nazi leaders,

Wickstrom is one of the strongest can-
didares and most recognizable numes
the Christian Identity movement has.
He may have only been drawing a few
dozen disciples to his furniture-store
sermons in recent years — but consider
that quality can be just as important
as quantity when building an army for
Yahweh, Among Wickstrom's converts
are men like James Nichols, brother of
Oklahoma Citv bomber Terry Nichols.
When James devored his life {(and that
of his incarcerated brother) to Arvan
warriorhood on Oct. 5, 2003, Wickstrom
was the first to shake his hand.

Suill, some experts question Wickstrom's
relevance to the movement of today.

“Wickstrom has lost saliency.” savs
Leonard Zeskind, an experton the Iden-
tity movement and the far righe. “The
terrain doesn’t exist for him anymore.”

Some of Wickstrom’s closest sup-
porters have condemned him for a rela-
tionship he began in August 2003 with
another man’s wife. So while Wickstrom’s
name was intended to bring legitimacy
to Juba’s faction of the Arvan Nations
(which Zeskind dismisses as the “sewer
end of the movement”), it’s possible thar
his presence will actually hure Juba.

Other observers aren't ready to count
Wickstrom out just yet.

“Jim Wickstrom has a certain stat-
ure in the racist movement — one Juba
doesn’t have — and especially among
the more religious, the biggest ones that
are really into the Christian Identity
aspect,” says Floyd Cochran. a former
Aryan Nations spokesman who now
speaks out against racism. “With the




As a non-combat soldier in the '60s, Wickstrom saw himseif outranked by black men in
a case of “reverse discrimination.” When he returned to America, he was repulsed by a
white culture of “sex, drugs and rock ‘n’ roll.”

death of Richard Butler, the Christian
Identity aspect of the movement is now
more focused on Wickstrom.”

Kerry Noble, a former Identity
adherent who has also left the move-
ment, knew Wickstrom in che "Sos
agrees that Wickstrom's new position
may be more than just a coda tw his
carecr. “The movement is lacking true
leadership. and Wickstrom is the closest
thing thar most groups have.”

Birth of a Salesman

Under different circumstances, Jim
Wickstrom might have been making
Chiquita banana stickers and Elmer's
Glue labels at a Kimberly-Clark paper
mill tor a living instead of talking abour
purtting people in wood chippers.

Wickstrom was born in 1942 in
Munising on Michigan’s Upper Pen-
insula. Although Wickstrom describes
the town as Michigan’s “Naples on the
lake,” the slogan is far grander than
the dreary circumstances of the tiny,
working-class town warrant. Times
have always been tough in Munising,
where the century-old paper mill on the
lake’s eastern shore looms large in the
life of residents, and the annual average
“income is less than s13,000.

Wickstrom was the second of chree
sons. His father worked as a foreman ar
asawmill. His mother was a homemaker.
Wickstrom graduated from high school
in 1960 and worked various jobs before
joining the military in 1964. He served

two vears (not six, as he often
claims), mostly as a warehouse-
man stationed in Fort Lewis,
Wash., and in Okinawa, and
never saw combat.

But Wickstrom did see black men sur-
pass him in rank left and right. He was
outraged at what he calls blatant “reverse
discriminarion,” and it was the first time
he remembers teeling racially aware.

Wickstrom was discharged as a pri-
vate first class in 1966 and returned o
an America he didn't understand. The
sex, drugs and foul language of che '60s
repulsed him, and he saw it as a sign
America’s character was weakening.

In 1970, he married the first of his four
wives, Dianne, whom he merwhile working
for Johnson Wax. In 1973, he ran a service
station in Rucine, Wis., withour success,
and then gave it up to go sell tools.

Soon after he left the service station,
Wickstrom was hired by Snap-On Tools
and began traveling as a salesman. The
position suited him for a time, but
Wickstrom was soon to discover tools
weren't the only things he could sell.

Assuming Identity

lt was 1975 when Wickstrom met tax
protestor Thomas Stockheimer, a man
who would introduce Wickstrom to the
Posse Comiratus (Stockheimer founded
the Wisconsin Posse Comitatus in 1970)
and Christian Identity.

Wickstrom remembers that day well.
His sales route took him past Stock-

heimer’s “Lictle People’s Tax Party”
office each week. One day Stockheimer
called out ro him and posed a troubling

question. “Do you know who you are?
Do you really know who vou are?”
Stockheimer queried. “Do vou know
that you're an Israelite?”

Wickstrom was inidally offended. He
had [ittle use for Jews and didn’t much like
being called one. But after hearing Stock-
heimer out, Wickstrom ended up leaving
with two tapes in his pocker, William
Potter Gale sermons entitled “Jacob the
Double Blessed” and “Jews are of Cain.”

The tapes were the first of many
that told Wickstrom he was more than
a pasty, pudgy salesman.

Christian Identiry teachings told him
he was one of God’s chosen people and
a member of the [sraelice tribe.

They explained Jews were the
demonic offspring of a sexual union
between Eve and Saran.

They told him blacks were subhu-
man because they couldn’t blush, no
better than beasts of the field and mere
tools of the Jews in their fight to destroy
White Western man.

To Wickstrom, it made perfect sense.

He and Stockheimer set up a Bible
study group in Wickstrom's basement
which they gradually built up, studying
Scripture and listening to tapes of Gale,

WINTER 2004 i

AP WIBE WORLD PHOTD




ol
o
tol
-
)

CE

INTELLIGEN

O ST TN T TS WO S, WO




one of Identity’s greatr teachers and a
founder of the Posse Comitatus, and other
ministers. Soon, Wickstrom says, chey
were drawing 45 members each week.

Wickstrom had ro go ir alone with-
out Stockheimer’s aid after a short while.
Stockheimer had assaulted an 1rs agent in
1974. When his appeal failed in July 1976,
Stockheimer skipped town and spent the
next four months on the lam.

Nort long after Stockheimer’s hasty
departure, Wickstrom quit his job and
moved his family to Schell City, Mo.

"1 wanted to be with like-minded
people,” he explains.

Wickstrom bought land near tellow
Identity minister Dan Gayman’s prop-
erty and taught history and geography at
a small school operated by Gayman and
another minister, Loren Kallstrom. He
formed his own church in 1977, Mission
of Jesus the Christ Church, and lived oft
tithes and donarions.

Buc he would soon have a falling our
with Dan Gayman. Wickstrom claims
he discovered that the property Gayman
was living on, which was supposed to
have been deeded to the Life Science
Church Gayman had established, in fact
remained in Gayman’s name. In late
1978, Wickstrom packed up his family
and moved to Wisconsin.

The Farmers and the Dells

Wickstrom came at the invirarion of
Donald Minniecheske, who had formed
a chapter of the Posse Comitarus and
was beginning to create a Posse com-
pound out of a tavern and several mobile
homes located on 570 acres on the shores
of the Embarrass River.

Wickstrom constructed a church our of
two side-by-side mobile homes, and began
whar he calls his “rejuvenation” of the Posse
Comitatus by naming himself “Nurional
Director of Counter [nsurgency.”

Wickstrom and Minniecheske
formed their own make-believe town
out of a bar and a few trailers. They

The pastor salutes a photographer (opposite).
Wickstrom hit his high-water mark when he “com-
pletely snookered [ Phil} Donahue” on the popular
talk show in 1983.

called it the Constitutional Township
of Tigerton Dells. Minniecheske had
lost his liquor license for the tavern
and dance hall he ran two years earlier.
Wickstrom, who had decided he was to
be the town’s judge and municipal clerk.
used his position to grant Minniecheske
a new one,

He also began traveling chroughourt
the farm belt, appearing ar meeting
halls, in basements, and at farm shows.
“I knew that something had to be done.
I knew that the ranchers and the farmers
were being meticulously destroved by
the Jew banking system in America,”
Wickstrom says.

What he offered was an attracrive,
if somewhar fanciful. solution to their
problems. Wickstrom told them that
both taxes and the federal government
were illegitimate. He told them they were
sovereign citizens and char debe could be
paid with fctitous money orders.

He called zip codes and driver’s
licenses examples of government tyr-
anny that were to be abandoned.

He said it was up to the people to
regain their power through direct
action. He told them Jews, tax collec-
tors, and other enemies of the people
were to be lynched.

Floyd Cochran grew up on a dairy
tarm and heard of Wickstrom's work
early on.

“In the "7os and "Sos farming went
through a drastic change. A lot of people

I'd known a good part of my life went

out of business,” Cochran savs. "Wick-
strom was organizing farmers our West,
appearing at farm shows and things of
that nature relling farmers you are losing
vour place not because of something vou
did burt because the Jews want w ke

away vour farms.”

Posse Power Peaks

The next three vears would see a
surge of support for Wickstrom's beliets.
Paramilirary training began at Tigerton
Dells in 1980, and Wickstrom claimed
that Posse seminars drew thousands of
participants who were taught survival
skills and covert military operations by
high-ranking Vietnam vets.

That same year Wickstrom ran
unsuccessfully for the U.S. Senate on
the far-right Constitution Party ticket
and managed to garner 16,000 votes. In
1982, a local radio stution began broad-
casting his speeches and Wickstrom ran
tor governor. He boasted tmprobably
that his Posse was more than 2 million
strong. He conrinued speaking all over
the country and met with great success.
Soon, events would introduce the fierv
preacher to an even wider audience.

When Gordon Kahl went to war wich
the government, it was Jim Wickstrom’s
big break.

On Feb. 13, 1983, the Posse became
national news when law enforcement
agents tried to arrest North Dakora
Posse member Gordon Kahl on a pro-
bation vielation. Kahl opened fire, kill-

WINTER 2004 3




ing two officers and injuring several
others. Kahl escaped in the confusion
and eluded law enforcement until June,
when a standoff in Arkansas resulted in
the death of Kahl and a sheriff.

Wickstrom loudly proclaimed Kahl
the Posse’s first martyr and, suddenly,
the media was listening,.

Wickstrom appeared on “20,20" with
Geraldo Rivera, and on a memorable
broadcast of “The Phil Donahue Show.”

“The highpoint for Wickstrom was
his appearance on ‘Phil Donahue.” He
completely snookered Donahue,”
says Daniel Levitas, author of
The Terrarist Next Door and an
expert on the Posse, adding that
Wickstrom used Kahl as a rally-
ing cry. “Wickstrom turned Kahl
into a media megaphone.”

Wickstrom toned down his
racist rhetoric for the broadcast,
and instead tailored his message
to address the frustrations of the
working class, emphasizing his
love tor country and strong Chris-
rian beliets. Far from discrediting
Wickstrom as a violent racist, the
appearance was nearly an info-
mercial for Wickstrom’s Posse.

But Wickstrom's turn as a televi-
sion star was short-lived. Soon afrer
Donahue, Wickstrom was charged
wich rwo counts of impersonating a
public official relating to his activi-
dies in Tigerton Dells.

During the proceedings, pros-
ecutor Douglas Haag successtully argued
that “the question is whether or not a
man with even marginal intelligence who
can read and write the English language
believes that he can purt a fence around
his back yard, set up a separate govern-
ment and call himself a public official.”
Haag added that “it [Wickstrom] has a
sincere belief that he is a public officer
within the laws of the State of Wisconsin,
I'm the Easter Bunny.”

Wickstrom

received the maximum senrence, 13

was convicted and
1/2 months. But even with Wickstrom
behind bars, the seeds he had planted in
1982 would take root in an unemployed
trucker in Nebraska.

The resules would prove to be deadly.

14 INTELLIGENCE REPORT

Hate Takes Root

Dennis Ryan, now 35, speaks in a
gruff, gravely voice that seems to suit the
topic at hand - - Dennis’ childhood.

Dennis was 12 years old when his
dad, Michael Ryan, told him ro put
down his football and pick up a rifle.
That was the vear his father met James
Wickstrom, who told him Armageddon
was coming and to prepare for battle.

Three vears later, Dennis helped his
father kill 2 man in Rulo, Neb.

In 1985, Dennis shot James Thimm

Five-year-old Luke Stice was the first to die at the hands of
Michael Ryan, Jim Wickstrom’s “main man” in Nebraska.

in the face. When Thimm, who had
fallen out of favor with Mike Ryan,
didnt immediately die, Mike had him
chained inside a hog shed. kicked,
bearen, and forced to have sex with a
goar. At his father’s request, 15-year-old
Dennis shot off the man’s fingers and
partially skinned him. Thimm was
anally raped with a shovel before Mike
Ryan finally kicked him to death. The
ordeal lasted two weeks.

Mike Ryan, a devortee of Wickstrom's
teachings, had dutifully carried out his
pastor’s violent ideology, killing in the
name of Yahweh, While Wickstrom has
never lifted a finger to begin the race
war he preaches is inevitable, in Ryan he
found an apt pupil.

1 don't hold Wickstrom responsible
for the crime | committed. [ hold him
responsible for getting my dad intwo it.”
Dennis tells the fnselligence Repore.Wick-
strom didn’t make my dad kill anybody,
but he planted the seed. He planted it in
my dad and then he helped it grow.”

Daniel Levitas agrees. “There could
not have been the tragedy in Rulo if
there was not a James Wickstrom.”

Mike Ryan had driven a truck for
years until he broke his back, lost his
job, and his family’s luck took a turn
for the worse. Our of work and in
dire financial straits, Ryan began
to cart his family around o dif-
ferent churches, never finding the
message he soughe until he heard
Wickstrom speak in 1982.

“He was looking tor something o
believe in,” recalls Dennis. “He didn't
like blacks to begin with. I don't
think he was ever a popular person
growing up. I think char it was the
right time for the wrong thing. He
was weak and vou don'tlet someone
indoctrinate you into something like
that unless you are weak-minded. He
was all screwed up.”

Some of the same frustrations
Wickstrom had felt as a young
man were mirrored in Ryan, and
he o jumped into Identity with
both feet.

“Wickstrom is dangerous to

—  the extent of provoking others,”

says Kerry Noble. "He is typical
of leaders. They won't do violent stuff,
vet that's all they'll preach. They'll push
butrons, but they are extremely cow-
ardly.”

Mike Ryan immediately wok
Wickstrom’s assurances that the end
times and the battle of Armageddon
were fast approaching. Wickstrom
treated Ryan like a protégé, and soon
steered several other of his supporters
Ryan’s way. Rvan, who through his asso-
clation with Wickstrom was elevated to
a position of power, gradually built up
his own cultish following and began
preparing them for battle.

“Jim Wickstrom was the reason Dad
got into thisstuft. He's the one who showed
Dad how to ralk 1o Yahweh, cthe reason




we started getting guns and preparing
for Armageddon.” says Dennis. “He was
always so amazed at all the weaponry and
how well Jim Wickstrom and his followers
in Tigerton Dells were armed.”

Ryan moved his family farm from Whit-
ing, Kan., to the farm in Rulo. He ordered
them 1o steal farm equipment, livestock and
weapons in the name of Yahweh.

The plan was simple and based on

Wickstrom’s teachings: “We were sup-
posed to kill all Satan’s people. Dad was
supposed to be the King of [srael, and [
was the Prince. He was supposed to die
before the New Jerusalem was brought

Zabawa warned that Ryan and his group
were both capable of and willing to kill Jews
and other perceived enemies of God.

Dennis says that Wickstrom was very
much a part of those times, even after
his father stopped going to hear him
speak or attend paramilitary training
sessions.

“Wickstrom wasn't physically a con-
stant presence in our lives, he wasn't over
all the time at the house or always on the
phone with my dad, bur he was there in
thac he was Dad’s teacher,” Dennis says.
“We had all of his fliers and cassettes.
Dad would even listen to Wickstrom

sexual abuse. The boy survived until
late March, when Ryan broke his neck
in a fit of rage. Rick Stice helped bury
his own son.

Months later, James Thimm would
be buried nearby.

Dennis Ryan served 12 years on a
second-degree murder conviction for
his role in the death of James Thimm.
Today, Dennis has been our of prison for
eight years, has a family and works as a
carpenter. He has no contact with his
father, who remains on death row.

Dennis says his father’s influence has
left him cautious, slow to trust, and with

“I have a dream! If that goddamn nigger can have a dream, | can have
a dream, too. | have a dream that in the days to come there won’t be
anyone who isn’t white that’s gonna be in America!”

down from Yahweh, and then I'd be
the king,” recalls Dennis, incredulous
at the scenario he once put his faith in.
“I believed it 110%. All the way. Hell,
helped kill 2 man for it, and I never once
questioned it.”

Before Thimm’s murder, in 1984,
Donald Zabawa, a former member
of the Covenant, the Sword, and the
Arm of the Lord, gave a confession to law
enforcementas part of a plea deal. Zabawa’s
statement, 2 warning of what was to come,
included what would prove to be an accu-
rate assessment of Mike Ryan’s activities
and plans. Zabawa said it was well known
that Ryan was considered “Wickstrom's
main man in Kansas,” and detailed the
group’s thefts and stockpiling of weapons.

while he was taking the garbage out.”

Ryan ruled his flock through strict
discipline and an atmosphere of fear.
He had managed to convince them that
Yahweh spoke to him and that Satan
would soon be at their door. They
obeyed without question.

Burt by January 1985, Ryan’s religious
fervor was consuming him. He became
more and more violent, convinced that
others were plotting against him. He
began lashing out physically and inex-
plicably focused the bulk of his wrath
and paranoia on Luke, the s-year-old
son of follower Rick Stice.

Ryan declared the child a spawn of
Satan and convinced the boy’s father
to help inflict horrendous physical and

little regard for organized religion. *I
look at the Bible and it scares me because
I know how people twist itand use it for
their own benefit,” he says. “I don’t want
some man up there telling me what God
expects of me. [ was told that before, and
I killed someone.”

Dennis takes a breath and continues.
“So many people interpret the Bible so
many different ways. I mean, take 9/11.
That’s their religious beliefs. Theyre no
different than what my dad did except
they actually carried it out. As tar as kill-
ing thousands of people — that was his
goal, w00.”

Levitas says that although Wickstrom
had no direct role in the murders, “cer-
tainly the blood of the victims of Rulo is
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Charles Juba leads Wickstrom's Aryah Nations fac-
tion, whose new slogan is “No Jew left alive in 2005."”

very much on his hands as a result of his
recruitment of Mike Ryan.” In his view,
the events at Rulo are "a case in point
that the speech of those on the far right
often results in deadly action.”

End Times

While Wickstrom was in jail for
impersonating a public official, the
government shut down the Tigerton
compound for zoning violations. When
he was released in the spring of 198s,
Wickstrom moved to Pennsylvania. The
terms of his probation forbade him from
involving himself with the Posse Comi-
watus or any kind of political group for
two years. Bur the irrepressible Wick-
strom couldn’t stay away for long.

Five years later, in 1990, Wickstrom
would be senrenced to 38 months in
prison for his role in a plot to print
$100,00 in counterfeirt bills to be distrib-
uted ac the 1988 Aryan Nations World
Congress and used to fund paramilitary
activities. By the time he was released,
the Posse had all but disappeared.

“Wickstrom’s light has been fading
ever since the compound at Tigerton Dells
shut down. Wickstrom’s heyday was in
the period from 1978 to 1985. That was his
period of peak influence,” says Levitas.
“Since then he’s hopscotched around and
been able to gather small groups of people
around him, but he'll never return to his
former stature in the movement.”

In the 10 vears since his release from
prison, Wickstrom has been relatively
low key. He has continued speaking to
small groups across the country. sell-
ing speeches chrough the mail and the
Internet, and also produced u weekly
radio show for seven years. Wickstrom
abandoned radio earlier chis year, citing
a desire to explore different direc-
tions.

But he has also has kept busy explor-
ing other men’s wives. Rumors of wom-
anizing have besieged the portly pastor
for years, but no dalliance has been as
flagrant and as divisive as the scandal
he is currently embroiled in, which may
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be politically damaging for a preacher
trying to make a comeback

In the summer of 2003, Wickstrom
took up with Kathleen Kallstrom, the
wife of Idencity minister Keith Kall-
strom, who along with his father Loren
Kallstrom had worked wich Wickstrom
during the heyday of Tigerton Dells.

Keith says Wickstrom secretly called
his wife of 31 vears for months, Then,
on Aug. 15, 2003, Kathy made a trip o
Wal-Mart and never came home. She
made her way to Michigan and moved
in with Wickstrom.

Keith Kallstrom was enraged, and
the situation became so volatile that a
council of Identity ministers, includ-
ing Eli James, Dan Johns and Gary
Blackwell, was convened in order to
resolve the dispute between the men.
In February 2004, Wickstrom refused to
attend and lashed our at his peers, who
Kallstrom savs condemned Wickstrom's
relationship wich his wife.

“There are things that Jim Wick-
strom teaches very well,” Kallstrom says
bitterly of his former friend. “But ic’s
not just a matter of what vou say and
what you do, but how you lead your life.
You do not stand behind the pulpicand
preach the tenth commandment, ‘thou
shall not cover,” and then take another
man’s wite. You do not twist the word
of God. You do not covet other people’s
blessings.”

Although Wickstrom may have lost

face with some of his peers, others have
enthusiastically embraced him.

Charles Juba’s Pennsylvania faction
of the Aryan Nartions hopes to capital-
ize on Wickstrom's stature. Days after
Burler’s dearh, Juba announced he was
appointing Wickstrom “Chaplin”
[sic}. An obvious choice for a group
whose slogan for the coming vear is
“No Jew left alive in 2005,” Wick-
strom offers a message that after 30
vears has neither mellowed nor strayed
from its core —— in fact, it appears to
have intensified. Age may have turned
Wickstrom from a vicious dog into a
rabid one.

Wickstrom may not have the power
ot the Posse behind him these days, but
he detinitely has a vision for America
thatstill draws a crowd, three genera-
tions later. One can only hope another
Mike Ryan is not in the mix.

As he told a group of racist Skin-
heads last spring: “I have a dream!
[f that goddamn nigger can have a
dream, [ can have a dream, too. [ have
a dream that in the days to come there
won't be anyone who isn’t whice that’s
gonna be in America!”

In response, a new generation of
racists punched the air with cheir
fists, crying “White Power!” and
“Preach it!” as swastikas Huttered in
the breeze. a
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The new mailing address for subject, James Wickstrom's

llowing investigation was conducted by SA

associate George Matousek, is 5850 Hunter Road, Beaverton,

Michigan

48612.
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Contact: SA|

Approved By

Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title: rQAMES_R*_%ICKSTROM;

Synopsis: To report the submission of an IIR.

Details: In October, 2004, SAl |submitted
information related to this case for inclusion into an IIR.
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Date of transcription 04/21/2005

George Matousek, w/m,/ég;'03/23/1930, 5850 Hunter Road,
Beaverton, MI 48612, 989—68974855/989—879—3522, telephoned the

BCRA and advised that he hg?/%everal audio cassette tapes that he

wanted to deliver to the FBAZ. The Investigating Agent knew
Matousek from previous coptacts, as Moutosek often delivered
propaganda related audio/video tapes to the FBI. Matousek then
described a phone conversation that he had hours earlier with James
Wickstrom.

Matousek stated that Wickstrom told him this morning that
a Reporter from the Bay City Times Newspaper, Bay City, Michigan,
called him and wanted to interview Wickstrom. Apparantly, the
Newspaper Reporter wanted to interview Wickstrom about a news-
report that the FBI considered Wickstrom the "Bin Laden" of
America. Matousek said that this was very troubling news for he
and Wickstrom to heaxr, and that they both are considering ceasing
all contact with SSA and SA| |

According to Matousek, Wickstrom refused to talk to the
Reporter because the last time they spoke, the Reporter twisted
things around to make Wickgtrom look bad. Matousek went on to say
that he doesn't tru SRA| |because he has read
qguotes by SSRAl hnd that everything that comes out of his
mouth is against Wickstrom. Ma 'E that he advised Wickstrom

not to attend meetings if SSRA s present because SSRA
demonizes Wickstrom, and hecause he went to the Synagogue

last year and supported the jews.
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Investigation' on 04/21/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)
File # Date dictated 04/21/2005

by

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBL It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 04/19/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resjdent Adgencv
Contact: SA

Approved By

Drafted By:

Case ID #: Pty

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To update the file.

Enclosure(s): Michigan State Police Forensic Report.
Details: The purpose of this EC is to update the file.

Attached to this report and enclosed in a separate 1A
envelope is a State of Michigan, Department of State Police,
Forensic Science Division, Laboratory Report. The report states
that the | i impressions ofi |white
male, DOB |were compared with latent prints found on a

soft drink can near the vandalized vehicle of James Wickstrom.
The comparison was made with no identifications being made.

*

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

bé
b7C

b3
b7E




- ¥

STATE OF MICHIGAN .

: DEPARTMENT OF STATE POLICE

Laboratory No.: 43331-04 Supp.
Received By :| I
pelivered By : S I

Agency
Agency No.

1 2948-04

Nature of Offense:
Arson

Suspect(s):

: Hampton Twp. Police Dept.

FORENSIC SCIENCE DIVISION
BRIDGEPORT LABORATORY
6296 DIXIE HIGHWAY, PO BOX 608
BRIDGEPORT, MICHIGAN 48722-0608
(989)777-9300
FAX (989)777-0551

LABORATORY REPORT

NN ST

Known Impressions Submitted:

Record No.
Date Received :
Time Received :
File Class
Date Completed:

Known finger impressions were submitted bearing the names of the above listed suspect.

Results of the Examinations:

The latent print on file was compared with the impressions of the above listed person with no

identifications being made.

The submitted impressions are being returned with this report.

CC: SA FBI

Forensic Scienfist

. 0404962

08-18-04
4:40 PM

: 2000-0

08-19-04

The relevant supporting data upon which the expert opinion or inference was made are available for

review/inspection.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 04/19/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Agency
Contact: SA

b3

Approved By b6
. b7cC

Drafted By3: b7E

Case ID #:

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To update the file.

Details: On 04/19/2005] |
|called the BCRA and reported information regarding
Keith Kallstrom| |and James Wickstrom. According
to Keith Kallstrom is still upset that]| |
wi 1cKkstrom. XKeith Kallstrom, who resides in Broken ATrYrow,
Oklahoma, traveled to Bay City and met with| |
and gave | |and a request
that| |assist him (Keith Kallstrom) in locating where[ ] bé
l |]and James Wickstrom are living. Keith Kallstrom b7C
believes that Wickstrom| |are residing in the
Pinconning, Michigan, area. Per] [Keith Kallstrom stated
that he wants to snatch| |[and have a spiritual
exorcism. ..to deliver her from the demons. Reportedly,. Keith
Kallstrom also stated that he must apply the lost-sheep principal
of the 0ld Testament and bring| | home, and
that..."if it means I lose my life, then so be it."

also reported this information to his local I
police department, the Hampton Township Police Department, Chief ////i>/
Gerald Runde. SA| |also spoke to Chief Runde. Chief Z
Runde knows Wickstrom and will disseminate the alleged threat
information.

<15

Since Wickstrom and]| |currently live in b7C

Gladwin County, Sa| jcalled Detectivel| |to
alert him that Keith Kallstrom may show up in his county.

b3
b7E




Main Subiject

Name -
Last:
First:
Middle:

Race:

Sex:

DOB:

| " Address(es) -
House #:
Street Name:
City:
State:
Postal Co
Country:

Phone #:

v To: I_na\:mr_Emm._l Detroit
Re: 04/19/2005
|

*

10/30/1949

93336

South 190 East Avenue
Broken Arrow

OK

74012-7237

USA

(918-852-1717
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 04/07/2005
To: Attn: SA
From: Detroit
BCRA b3
Contact: b6
b7C
Approved By: b7D
! b7E
Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title: James P. Wickstrom
AQOT-DT-VC

Synopsis: To Document Contact with James Wickstrom
Details: The purpose of this EC is to document
conversation initiated by James Wickstrom to SA

On 4-6-05, Wickstrom telephoned SAl |at the
BCRA and asked whether the FBI had any information regarding who
burned down the building where Wickstrom previously conducted his

Bible studies. Wickstrom was advised that the arson case was bé
being investigated by the Michigan State Police, Fire Marshal b7C

Wickstrom said that he has recently spoke to Det
[:::::::] and that[::::::::]advised that the investigation could
take up to 18 months since it's a high profile case.

Wickstrom asked when SA and SSA
CT-1 Supervisor, would be available to meet again for lunch.
Wickstrom was told that 4-22-05 may be a good date.

bé
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 05/02/2005

George Matousek, white male, date of birth March 23,
1930, 5850 Hunter Road, Beaverton, Michigan 48612, delivered an
audio cassette ta ' '
with Matousek was

| The audio tape is dated April
5, 2005, and contains a teaching by James Wickstrom.

Matousek noted that one of the tapes is for SSA

in Detroit.

Investigation on 04/28/2005 aa Bay City, Michigan

File #] Date dictated 04/28/2005

by

T

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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., FD-542 (Rev. 01-31-2003)

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 05/04/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

BCRA
Contact:

Approved By
Drafted By:

Case ID #: .

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To report interview with Subject

Details: The purpose of this FD-542 is to report that on
06/06/2003, an interview was conducted with Subject James P.
Wickstrom.

b3
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To: Detroit From: Detroit
Re: | | 05/04/2005

Accomplishment Information:

Number: 1

Type: INTERVIEW OF SUBJECT (CONTACT & ESPIONAGE)

ITU: AGENT INTERVIEW

Claimed By:
SSN:
Name:
Squad: BCRA

*
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE - " Dates:, 05/16/2005
To: - Detroit -Attn: Squad C-9
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Agency
Contact: SA

Approved By

Drafted By:

Case ID #: Perding)

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

ATTENDEES MAY BE ARMED & DANGEROUS

Synopsis: To document a request to Squad C-9 for surveillance
support.

Enclosure(s) :

Details: The purpose of this EC is to document a request that

was submitted to Sgquad C-9, for surveillance operations on

| The reguest was

submitcted on| |
form, one of which is attached to this EC and contained in a
separate 1A envelope.

Wickstrom has the distinction of being one of the most
prominent racial extremists in America. Wickstrom is a Pastor in
the Christian Identity White Supremacy Movement, and over the
past year was named the National Pastor for the Aryan Nations.
Wickstrom used to conduct religious services at the Marquiss
Furniture Store in the Bay County town of Essexville; however,
the store was burned by an arsonist in June, 2004.
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‘To: Detroit Fron’ Detroit .
‘ Re: | | 05/16/2005

Wickstrom and his followers are gurveillance congcious

The ?QRA hags attempted to maintain an open dialogue
with Wickstrom

Wickstrom is a convicted felon, who was convicted in
1990 of Conspiracy to Pass Counterfeit U.S. Currency in an effort
to fund a guerrilla army. Wickstrom currently lives at his
residence]|

Keith Kallstrom, of Broken Arrow, Oklahoma, approximately one
year ago. Since that time, Keith Kallstrom has traveled to the
BCRA territory and attempted| Reportedly,
Keith Kallstrom recently made the statement that he was going to

snatch| bnd _exerci he demons out her. The local
police have alerted] |

| [Keith Kallstrom is also a Pastor
in the Christian Identity Movement.

SUBJECT INFORMATION

Name James P. Wickstrom

Race White

Sex Male

DOB - 10/07/1942

Address 4550 Church Road
Rhodes, Michigan

County Gladwin

ATTENDEES MAY BE ARMED & DANGEROUS

*
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 05/10/2005

James P. Wickszlém, white male, date of birth October 7,
1942, 4550 Church Road, Rhodgs, Michigan, telephone number (989)
879-1089, cellular telephone number (989) 598-5017, telephoned the
Bay City Resident Agency. Wickstrom was familiar with the
investigating Agent from previous\contact and he subsequently
provided the following information?

Wickstrom stated that at approximately 11:30 a.m., on
Friday, May 6, 2005, he observed a dark-colored vehicle drive
slowly past his house. Less than a minute later, the same car came
from the opposite direction and this time stopped in front of his
house. Wickstrom observed two people in the car, a man and a
woman. The female passenger had a video camera and was filming
Wickstrom's house.

Wickstrom said that he got into his vehicle and pursued
the unknown vehicle in an attempt to identify who the people were.
Wickstrom stated that the suspicious vehicle was traveling at a
high rate of speed and he was, therefore, not able to catch the
unknown subjects. Wickstrom did not know whether the unknown
subjects were the media, law enforcement, realtors or someone hired

by Keith Kallstrom to locate the whereabouts of
| who is living with Wickstrom.

On 05/06/2005, this information was disseminated to
Detective Sergeant]| |Michigan State Police]

bé
b7C
b7E

Investigation on 05/06/2005 at Bay City, Michigan

'I _ Date dictated 05/09/2005,

b3
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This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBIL It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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>
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 05/10/2005
To: Detroit - Attn: _CT-4
Counterterrorism Attn:

From: Detroit
BCRA
Contact:

b3
Approved BY bé
b7C

Drafted By b7E

Case ID #:

Title: JAMES P. WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To update the receiving offices.
Full Investigation Initiated: 10/25/2004

Details: The purpose of this EC is to provide the receiving
offices with an update pertaining to the captioned Subject.

Subject James P. Wickstrom, is a National Christian
Identity Leader who resides in the Bay City Resident Agency
territory. Christian Identity is a hate-filled religious sect
descended from British Israelism which has. come to dominate much
of the leadership of the extreme right in the United States.
Among its' beliefs are the notions that Jews are descended from
Satan and that non-white races are inferior.

The most famous Christian Identity group is the Aryan
Nations (AN); however, the religion can be found among groups
ranging from Klan organizations to the Montana Freeman. It is
reported that the sect has approximately 30,000 to 60,000
believers, but is disproportionately influential in the extreme
right. Christian Identity believers tend to be among the most
radical and committed members of the Anti-Government Extremist
movement.

Wickstrom has a limited but national following who
listen to his weekly teachings via cassette audio tape. The
Anti-Defamation League described Wickstrom as an extreme
hatemonger who uses Christianity to justify racism and anti-
Semitism. ‘
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To: Detroit From.‘ Detroit .
Re: |05/10/2005

Wickstrom resided in the Bay County, Michigan, town of
Essexville for several years before moving to the Gladwin County,
Michigan, town of Rhodes in or around January, 2005. Wickstrom
used to conduct religious services to a group of about 10-20
followers at the Marquiss Furniture Store in Bay County; however,
the store was burned by an arsonist in June, 2004. A suspect in
the arson case was Bay City, Michigan

|w/m, dob| | During questioning by the FBI
and the Michigan State Police (MSP) |gave a taped

confession admitting responsibility for the fire because he
didn't agree with what was being preached by Wickstrom. The case

was presented to AUSA| |Eastern District of
Michigan, Northern Division, Bay City, Michigan. After reviewing
the file, AUSA[__ ]declined prosecution of] [due to

lack of Federal jurisdiction. The case is currently still being
reviewed by the Bay County Prosecutor.
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To: Detroit Fron.’ Detroit ‘

Re: | |05/10/2005

Wickstrom has historically hosted three national
gatherings each year: The Feast of the Tabernacles in October,
the Feast of the Passover in April, and the Feast of First Fruits
in May. The exact dates of these events vary from year to year.
Reportedly, during the peak of Wickstrom's popularity, 80 to 100
people used to attend his gatherings. However, due to internal
feuding within the group, his meetings have shrunk to about 18

people in attendance )

| The source reported that|

|Wickstrom's

nhouse in kssexville, Michigan. This was significant because
Wickstrom is a convicted felon, who was convicted in 1990 of
Conspiracy to Pass Counterfeit U.S. Currency in an effort to fund

a guerrilla army. The source also noted that]

lsource also reported that Wickstrom was

In October, 2002, a| |FBI source

| This source remarked that although he/she did not hear

Wickstrom discuss criminal activity, the source was aware that

|According to the source, Wickstrom spewed typical

vitriolic, anti-Semitic and racist remarks in his
speeches/sermons. Furthermore, Wickstrom allegedly encouraged

the listeners to take action against Jews and Mondgarels
Wickstrom|

Source reporting, and the media, reported that James
Nichols, the brother of convicted Oklahoma City bomber, Terry
Nichols attended the October, 2002 meeting. Specifically, the
Flint, Michigan, Journal newspaper (02/09/2003) published a front
page article about Nichols having attended Wickstrom's October
meeting. During the Oklahoma City bombing investigation,
information was developed indicating that Terry Nichols
experimented with explosives on the James Nichols farm near
Decker, Michigan.
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To: Detroit Fron, Detroit ‘

Re: | | 05/10/2005

| The

BCRA listened to a cassette audio-tape recording of Wickstrom's
latest meeting held in April, 2005. During the recording,

Wickstrom identified two of the quest speakers in attendance as

Wickstrom is known to travel throughout the country and
was a featured speaker at the Aryan Congress in Pennsylvania from
07/26-28/2002 and at a Florida Hammerskin event in April 2004.
During this Aryan Congress, Wickstrom gave another fiery speech
in which he declared that there isn't a Jew that deserves to live
for what they have done to the white race. Wickstrom encouraged
all the separate white supremacy groups to come together as one
in order to form a strong "club" against the enemy. Also during
the speech, Wickstrom said that nothing would please him more
than to see mixed-race couples piled up like cord-wood or to see

the graves of Jews dug up and their bones burned.
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To: _Detroit F‘ron’ Detroit ‘

Re: 05/10/2005

Based on the information contained herein, a
Preliminary Investigation was initiated 04/15/2003 due to the
possibility that criminal activity existed. The scope of the
investigation was for the purpose of identification, ascertaining
any connection to terrorist activities, and/or for asset
development.

On 06/06/2003, Wickstrom was interviewed by ssa______ ]

etroit CT-1, and SA BCRA. Wickstrom
indicated that he was upset with the controversy that has been
generated by the recently published article about him in what he
called the "jew controlled" Bay City newspaper. Wickstrom
advised that over the past two years, he has peacefully exercised
his constitutional rights of freedom of speech/assembly and that
the Bay City newspaper is to blame for creating the recent
controversy.

On 02/13/2004, St. Louis Division conducted a search of
U.S. Military records pertaining to Wickstrom. Wickstrom often
claimed to have been a Vietnam veteran in the Infantry. A review
of Wickstrom's records reveal that Wickstrom received an
Honorable discharge from the U.S. Army on 01/31/1970 and that his
specialty title was Supply Handler. Further review indicate that
Wickstrom's only overseas service was from 10/10/1965 to
01/19/1966 in Okinawa. According to the Army personnel file,
Wickstrom's highest appointed rank was Private First Class, which
he obtained on 10/05/1964.

On 10/14/2004, the Bay City newspaper reported that
Wickstrom had taken on a national leadership role with the AN
group based in Pennsylvania. A news release from the AN said
that Wickstrom was picked by AN leader to lead the
group because he was the most knowledgeable in Racial Identity
teaching, is the most feared, and the most hated by the enemies
of the AN.
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To: Detroit Fror.’ Detroit ‘

Re: | 05/10/2005
b3
b7D
b7E
In the winter of 2004, the Intelligence Report Magazine
published an article titled "Return of the Pastor". It
highlighted how Christian Identity Preacher James Wickstrom had
been preaching hate for decades. The author continued by
highlighting how Wickstrom's new role with an AN off-shoot group
could make the fire-breathing Pastor one of the radical right's
most influential figure.
In view of the information that Wickstrom was now
closely associated with the AN, the PI was converted on
10/25/2004 to a Full Investigation.
b6
b7C
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

\

| white male,

Date of transcription

date of birth

05/10/2005

[Bay~City, Michigan, telephone number

Also present during the intervie
City Police Department.l W
the investigating Agent, as well as

investigation, and he subsequently provided the following

information:

|[was interviewed at the Bay City Police Department.
was Detective Dean Vosler,
advised as to the identity of
he nature of the

Bay

| |was asked whether he had information regarding
activitieg at the Marquiss furniture store in Hampton Township,
Michigan. |said that he was aware that a white supremacy

group had occasionally used the furniture store as a meeting place,
and that the store burned down last summer.
only knew about the furniture store because

stated that he

b6
b7C

b6

b7C

uses his vehicle as transportation to work.

[noted that]

enied having ever attended meetings at the
Marquiss furniture store and said that his_vehicle w onl

vicinity of the furniture store because of
viewed a photograph of Wickstrom and said

in the

that h

someone who oncel|

could not recall any specific details about Wickstrom.

e looks like

However]

b7C

7/

File

Investigation on 05/06/2005 at Bay City, Michigan

Date dictated

05/09/2005

SA

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI.

i it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.

It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 05/18/2005

Leroy Marquiss, white le, date of birth May 17, 1932,
Essexville, Michigan, telephone number] |
|delivered an envelopg of printed material To tlhe BCRA.

Also present was white female, date of birth
]leeroy and are familiar with the investigating

Agent from previoUs COTITACT/ anc they subsequently provided the
following information:

Leroy Marquiss presented the investigating Agent with an
envelope that contained xerox coéopies of documents apparently
pertaining to the arson at his business, The Marquiss Quality
Furniture Store, on June 21, 2004. Among the documents are a
letter from Marquiss to the State Attorney General, newspaper
clippings, letters from various community members, insurance forms,
and a video tape of a meeting hosted at the furniture store by
James Wickstrom.

-~
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Investigation on 05/16/2005 at Bay City, Michigan

File i( Date dictated 05 / 16 / 2005

A

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 05/18/2005

George Matousek, whitgd male, date of birth March 23,
1930, 5850 Hunters Road, Beavefton, Michigan 48612, telephone
number (989) 689-4855, contagted the investigating Agent regarding
whether the investigating Aglent had received the audio cassette
tapes that Matousek dropped off at the Bay City Resident Agency on
Thursday, May 12, 2005. The investigating Agent knew Matousek from
pervious contacts, as Matousek often delivered propaganda-related
audio tapes to the FBI.

During the conversation, Matousek was asked whether he
had any information regarding a white supremacy group called The
Aryan Reformation Knights. Matousek advised that he had never
heard about the group. Matousek said that he would be delivering
additional tapes to the BCRA sometime next week.

b3
b6
b7C
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* Ivestigation on 05/16/2005 at Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)
File( Date dictated 05/16/2005

b

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 05/20/2005

James P. Wickstrom, w/w, dob 10/07/1942, 4550 Church
Road, Rhodes, Michigan, (989)-879-1089, telephoned the Bay City
Resident Agency. Wickstrom wgs familiar with the investigating
Agent from previous contact dnd he subsequently provided the
following information:

Wickstrom stated that he was calling to see if George
Matousek had dropped off the latest audio cassette taTgs_xggQrdgd1
by Wickstrom Wickstrom also wanted to know when SSA

and SA were going to be able to meet for lunch.

Wickstrom confirmed that the Arvan Nations leadership has
been changed from| Wickstrom said
that it was a personal decigsion for] [to _step down, and that his
primary reason was because| |
Wickstrom noted that there was no power struggle to £ill the

vacancy.
Wickstrom identified the new AN leader |as

a personal friend who has been a house guest of Wickstrom 8-10

times. Wickstrom described as being well read and as having

a good heart. Wickstrom said that he has advised| lto clean
himself up by trimming his beard and wearing slacks and polo-style
shirts.

Wickstrom stated that[:::::]talks tough but is not a
terrorists as the news media recently portrayed.[ __ |does,
however, believe that this country is currently at war with the
jews. Wickstrom said that he has told[:::::]to tell it straight
and to keep his remarks within the realm of not sounding crazy.
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Investigationon ~ 05/17/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)
Date dictated 05/17/2005
(140 1.302)
This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBL. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;

it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 05/24/2005
To: Detroit

From: Detroit

BCRA
Contact:
Approved By b3
b6
Drafted By: b7
b7E
Case ID #: Rending
Title: _JAMES P. WICKSTROM
SOME ATTENDEES HAVE BEEN KNOWN TO CARRY WEAPONS AND
ARE KNOWN TO HAVE CRIMINAL RECORDS
Synopsis: To document
Full Investigation Initiated: 10/25/2004
Enclosure (s): Photographs of |
b6
. . . b7C
Details: The purpose of this EC is to| b7E
Wickstrom has the distinction of being one of the most
prominent racial extremists in America. Wickstrom is a Pastor in
the Christian Identity White Supremacy movement and over the past
year, was named the National Pastor for the Aryan Nations.
Wickstrom used to conduct religious services at the Marquiss
furniture store in the Bay County, Michigan, town of Essexville;
however, the store was burned by an arsonist in June, 2004.
b6
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To: Detroit Fro.‘ Detroit
Re: 05/24/2005

Wickstrom telephoned the BCRA on 05/17/2005 and

inquired about another meeting with the FBI.

During that

conversation, Wickstrom confirmed that the Aryan Nations

leadership has been changed from|
Wickstrom identifiedlil

as a personal friend who has been_a

house guest of Wickstrom 8-10 times. An FBI source reported|

Wickstrom is a convicted felon, who

1990 of Conspiracy to Pass Counterfeit U.S. Currency in an effort

was convicted in

to fund a guerrilla army. Wickstrom currently lives at his

residence |

Keith Kallstrom, of Broken Arrow, Oklahoma, approximately one

year ago. Since that time, Keith Kallstrom has traveled to the

BCRA territory attempting]

Kallstrom recently made the statement that he
nd exercise the demons out of her.

The local police

have alerted]|

| |Keith Kallstrom 1is
the Christian Identity movement.

also a Pastor in

Reportedly, Keith
was going to snatch
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To: _Detroit F"rm’ Detroit

Re: 05/24/2005

Descriptive Data:

Main Subiject
Name -

Last: Wickstrom
First: James
Middle: P.
Race: W
Sex: M
DOB: 10/07/1942
Alias(es) -
Last: Wickstrom
DDN: Pastor
Address(es) -
House #: 4550
Street Name: Church Road
City: Rhodes
State: MI
Country: USA
Phone #: 989-879-1089
Phone #: 989-598-501"7
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SOME ATTENDEES HAVE BEEN KNOWN TO CARRY WEAPONS AND
ARE KNOWN TO HAVE CRIMINAL RECORDS
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 06/03/2005

George Matousek, w/m, dob 03/23/1930, 2301 Mt. Forest
Road, Bentley, MI, phone 989-689-4855/989-879-3522, appeared at the
office of the FBI, Bay Cii:}/Michigan, for the purpose of

delivering five video tapes/Containing the teachings of James P.
Wickstrom. Matousek was fdmiliar with the investigating Agent from
previous contact.

Matousek identified the tapes as having been filmed
during the Feast of the First Fruits meeting over the weekend of
May 28, 2005. The meeting was at Wickstrom's residence, located at
4550 Church Road, Rhodes, Michigan.

The five video tapes were duplicated and a copy provided

to Detective/Sergeant]| [Michigan State Police. b6
b7C

Investigation on 06/02/2005 aa Bay City, Michigan

Fill

by

b3

Date dictated 06/03/2005 | b6
b7C
b7E

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 06/03/2005

| w/m, dob

[Michigan,] [was interviewed at

| . was advised as to the
identity of the investigatjihg Agent, as well as the nature of the
investigation, and he subgequently provided the following
information.

[::::::::] said that he andl attended

a meeting on 06/28/2005 at the home of James Wickstrom, called the
Feast of the First Fruits.| |stated that the meeting was
attended i i d

did not have any other information regardingl |

stated that the meeting was mostly bible teaching
and that it offered him a chance to learn about his race.
According to[______ one of the teachings presented by Wickstrom
was on how the white people of northern Europe came to North
America thousands of years ago and mined copper in northern
Michigan. Reportedly, several grave sites have been unearthed in
the Bay City area which support this historical assertion.

| |stated that he has attended Wickstrom's meetings

|had no information regarding the cause of the fire
at the furniture store.[_____ |said that nothing bad was ever
taught at the meetings he attended, nor had he heard anyone talking
about criminal activities.

Investigation on 05/31/2005 at Michigan

File # Date dictated 06/03/2005

by

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
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Date of transcription 06/23/2005

-George Matousek, w/m, dob 03/23/1930, 2301 Mt. Forest
Road, Bentley, MI, phone 989-689-4855/989-879-3522, telephoned the
FBI for the purpose of confirming whether the investigating Agent
had received the audio cassette tapes that he (Matousek) delivered
| to the BCRA. The two tapes contained teachings of James P.
Wickstrom.

Investigation on 06/17/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)

File # Date dictated 06/17/2005
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Date of transcription 06/03/2005
| lw/m, dob | _ |
| |Michigan] | was interviewed at his place of
employment]| | Michigan. fvas

advised as to the identity of the investigating Agent, as well as
the nature of the investigation, and he subsequently provided the

following information.

While the investigating Agent was talking tol

| lentered] |and was pointed out by
b3
b6
b7C
b7E
Investigation on 05/31/2005 at Michigan
File # Date dictated 06/03/2005
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Date of transcription 06/21/2005

At approximately 2:52 pm, SSA received a
telephone call at his desk telephone in the FBI field office

|from a caller who identified himself as Jim Wickstrom. bé
ssa | recognized the caller as James P. Wickstrom date of b7cC

birth 10/07/1942 by the sound of hisg voice. Wickstrom knew the
identity of SSA[::f::::krom previous contacts.

After an exchange of initial greetings, Wickstrom
provided the following information.

Wickstrom celebrated with his Identity Church group the
"Feast of First Fruits" over the past weekend. On Friday evening
and Saturday, the Michigan State Police pulled over with traffic
stops everyone attending the function as they were leaving the
event. The police stopped about twenty cars over the two days. 1In
some cases, the police, after the driver asked the reason for the
stop, informed the driver that the car fit the description of a car
seen driving recklessly, and, the police wanted to identify the car
occupants. In some cases, the police gave no explanation for the
stop. :

The police ticketed one driver who was about 70 years old
for reckless driving. This person noticed a van parked on the side
of the road about one half mile from where the Identity Church
event was taking place. He drove toward the van and the van pulled
back onto the roadway. He then followed the van. A state police
officer then pulled him over and stated that the state trooper was
"told to give a ticket" to the driver for reckless driving.

When Wickstrom heard about these stops from the people
who were being pulled over, Wickstrom called the county sheriff's
office to determine if these stops were being done by real police
or whether someone else was involved who were not police. The
sheriff dispatcher told Wickstrom that no one at the sheriff's
office was aware of the traffic stops. He was later told that in
fact the stops were being done by real police. After Wickstrom's
telephone call to the sheriff's office, the traffic stops stopped.

Wickstrom was concerned that the police were looking for
trouble and to cause "another Gordon Kahl incident". Wickstrom
noticed three to four unmarked cars watching his group and three to

Investigation on 05/31/2005 at Detroit MI (telephonically) b3
b6
File # Date dictated Not dictated b7C
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Cohtllnuation of FD-302 of James P. Wickstrom ,0n 05 /3 1 /2 005 ,Page
four more state police "bubble machines". Wickstrom did not believe
the police explanation for the stops but believed that the purpose
of the police stops was to harass the people attending his
function.
Wickstom stated that he has a constitutional right to be

The purpose of his telephone call to SSA

ractice his religion.
ﬁ;;:::]was"to inform the FBI that he considered the police actionms b7C
of stopping the people who attended his identity church function a

violations of his civil rights.
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Date of transcription 07/11/2005

ssal received a telephone call at his desk
telephone] |]in the FBI field office from a caller who
identified himself as Jim Wickstrom. SSA[::::;:]recognized the
caller as James P. Wickstrom date of birth 10/07/1942 by the sound
of his voice. Wickstrom knew the identity of SSA from
previous contacts.

After an exchange of initial greetings, Wickstrom
provided the following information.

He was "out of town" and could not meet with SSA[:::;::]
on 06/24/2005 as previously arranged. He also wanted to "see how
[sSsA[__ ]was doing."

In response to an earlier e-mail from Wickstromf SSA

| assured Wickstrom that neither SSA[ nor sa

lhad any issues with the FBI because of their meetings

with Wickstrom and George Matousek; and, that SAa| |
transfer from the Bay City Residence Agency was not related to
these meetings. Wickstrom advised that he became concerned about

SSA land sa| pfter he spoke to George Matousek.
Wickstrom advised that Matousek had concluded that the FBI was
transferring SA |because of s |relationship

with Matousek and Wickstrom. Wickstrom stated that Matousek gave
him no reason for his conclusion except that Matousek became aware
that the FBI was transferring SA| land, Matusick assumed
that it was related to their meetings.

Wickstrom advised that he would meet SSA[::::::]for lunch
on 07/01/2005 at the usual location.

This conversation was in relation to the following e-mail
SsSA| |received at his personally owned MSN e-mail
account.

BEGIN E-mail

From:

Date: EDT

To:| |

Subject:|
Investigation on 06/23/2005 at Detroit, MI (telephonically)
File # Date dictated Nnot dictated
by SSA
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Continuation of FD-302 of James P. Wickstrom ,On 06 / 23 /2 005 , Page

This is the only email address that I will communicate to you on.

| that our "lunches" have created a hostile setting

I am sorry to hear this, but it does not surprise me.
I figured that it would be just a matter of time and the hammer would

come down..... and that our mutual meetings would come to a halt.

I want you to know..... thatl bre the ONLY other two of
your kind that I have come to trust and admire in over 30 vears. The
other was| | ...retired| |
branch...when, he too, was transfired] |Exrom Wisconsin
Shortly thereafter..... he was transfered.

This is the medium of correspondence that I will have with you from
Nnow ON....... if that is acceptable to you. I know all incoming calls
are monitored (or they should be)...that come to your landline number
in Detroit. As to your cell phone, I do not know??

If I have created a problem fox ....I surely apoligize

as that was not the intent.

I pray that you and your entire family are in good health and are
fine. We are fine here. From the earlier actions here by the massive
State Police (?) happening here, I now am looking 360 degrees at all
times again.

Remember what I said to you the first time we met? What if just 25%
of what I tell you and show you is true? Well...it is, and in fact,
a lot more than 25% is true.

Be careful and watch your back at all times. Remember what the
Proverbs say...."With much wisdom, comes much sorrow." There are many
who do not want the truth to be known.

I await your reply fto thig email. I am also very sorry to hear about
the situation with That also didn't surprise me. Please
convey my best to him. He is a damn good man. You both are.

END E-mail
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Continuation of FD-302 of , O , Page [

The e-mail contained a link to an internet site




FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

(Rev. 01-31-2003)

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 07/26/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Adgency
Contact: SA

st b3

Approved By bé

b7C

Drafted By: b7E
Case ID #: Perrctrg>-

Title: _JAMES P, WICKSTROM

Synopsis: To reassign captioned case.

Full Investigation Initiated: 10/25/2004

Details: The purpose of this EC is to advise Detroit that the
captioned case is being reassigned.

Due to the pending transfer of sa| this file
is being reassigned to SA| |
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Date of transcription 08/04/2005

James P. Wickstrom, date of birth October 7, 1942, home
telephone number 989-879-1089, cellular telephone number 989-598-

5017, was contacted via telephone by Special Agent]|

chkstrom was aware of the identity of the interviewing Agent due
to previous encounters. Wickstrom provided the following
information:

Keith Kallgtrom told his children that he was going to
Arkansas for work. Before leaving, Kallstrom left his bulldog with

Wickstrom stated that he thought Kallstrom was "coming to
assassinate sie" and would

b6
b7C

bé
b7C

Wickstrom last spoke with Kallstrom "a few years ago"

while both were in Tennessee. Wickstrom estimated that the two men
spoke for approximately 40 minutes. Wickstrom stated that
Kallstrom was "unstable then".

Wickstrom did not know if Kallstrom had an "accessory"'.
However, Wickstrom stated that Kallstrom had been "in the company -
of people wanting to kill" Wickstrom. Wickstrom identified]| |

|who lives in [Michigan, and| [who

lives in| [Michigan, as being two possib}g,a55001ates of
Kallstrom's. o

-

Kallstrom was "capable in his mind to do something, and I
(Wickstrom) was that something."

Wickstrom stated that he wondered if Kallstrom had
obtained the explosives while he was in Michigan.

Investigation on 08/02/2005 a Pinconning, Michigan
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Date of transcription 08/04/2005

James P. Wickstrom, date of birth October 7, 1942, home
telephone number 989-879-1089, cellular telephone number 989-598-
5017, was contacted via telephone by Special Agent |
Wickstrom was aware of the identity of the interviewing Agent due

to previous encounters. Wickstrom provided the following
information:

Wickstrom stated that Keith/;allstrom had made threats

bé

uses a/P 0. box il |Michigan. Q)b"c

Keith Kallstrom was spotted byl
Michigan, on Saturday, July 30, 2005. However, Keith Kallstrom did
not see

Wickstrom described Keith Kallstrom as a "real loose
cannon" and that Wickstrom feels he "thinks Kallstrom has a death
wish."

Wickstrom stated that he hoped Keith Kallstrom "will be
in custody for a long time".

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

Investigation on 08/02/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)

File # Date dictated 08/04/2005
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Date of transcription 08/05/2005

Keith Eugene Kallstrom, date of birth October 30, 1949,

who resides at 8217 South Peach Street, Broken Arrow, Oklahoma
74011, telephone number 918-852-1717, was interviewed at the Bay

ICountv Jail by Special Agent |and Detective Sergeant

| Fire Marshal, Michigan State Police. Kallstrom

was advised of the identities of the interviewing Agent and
detective, and the nature of the interview. Prior to any
questioning, Kallstrom was shown form FD-395, Interrogation Advice
of Rights. Kallstrom was asked if he could read and write English.
He responded that he could, but, that he unfortunately did not have

his

lasses, so he would be unable to clearly read any form. SA
then read the form aloud to Kallstrom and asked Kallstrom if

he understood his rights and if he wished to speak with the
investigators without an attorney present. Kallstrom answered that
he did understand his rights and that he would speak with the
investigators, then signed the form. Kallstrom then provided the
following information:

Kallstro i i i i i ause
he was looking for
Kallstrom wanted to |]about reconciling their

_________JE__________1

was a member of the Arvan Nations. She "ran off with Jim

Wickstrom| | However, Kallstrom did not
know where Wickstrom| lwere currently residing.
| | Kallstrom
responded that he would "aimlessly look for her".

Kallstrom and) [have had no contact since

|left. Kallstrom admitted that he had sent[;::::]
["some scripture", but had no direct contact with her

In April, 2004,

pgainst Kallstrom.

Kallstrom advised that he "would not hurt"

that he only wanted to talk with her.

Kallstrom had previously "talked about coming to get her
" Jand the "Judge in

[;:::::::]but after speaking with
Oklahoma", determined it was "not the right thing to do".

Investigation on

08/02/2005 a Bay City, Michigan
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Kallstrom had not seen Wickstrom since 1982. However, he
admitted that he had spoke i ' over the phone on a few
occasions. Wickstrom sent audio tapes of his
sermons. Kails;xgm_s;a;gd_;haﬁ he believed that is how Wickstrom
tried to get
b6
When asked about how Kallstrom felt towards Wickstrom, he b7C
stated he "cannot pray for destruction, but he can make charges".
Kallstrom was asked to clarify what he meant by "charges" and he
responded that he did not mean "charges" in the legal sense, but in
the spiritual/Biblical sense.
During the interview, Kallstrom stated, without
prompting, that he wanted to kill Wickstrom and | |
and that Wickstrom would be "judged under Biblical law".
Kallstrom advised that he left Oklahoma on Sunday morning
and drove "20-plus hours" and "1,000-plus miles" to get to the
Pinconning area.
Kallstrom stated that he had possessed the grenades found
in his truck for approximately 30 years. However, he did not know
why the grenades were in his truck. Later in the interview, when
asked about the grenades again, Kallstrom stated that he had moved
them from his home to his truck when
I |
Kallstrom told] lthat he was b6
going to Arkansas for work. When asked why he did not tell[ ] b7c
where he was going, Kallstrom responded tha did not need
to know". Kallstrom hag|

Kallstrom stated that since he arrived so late in the
Pinconning area on Sunday that he "did not have time to look for
| | When asked why he would make a 40-plus hour,
round-trip drive_ from Oklahoma to Michigan, but then not take the
time to look for Kallstrom responded that "He
showed me a better way". Kallstrom stated that "the Father told
him to contact a lawyer about| |

When asked why Kallstrom felt obligated to drive 20 hours
to "talk tol ps opposed to calling information and asking
for her phone number, Kallstrom replied that he only owned a cell
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phone, that the 411 call would be considered long distance and was
too expensive. He was then asked if it made sense for him to spend
more money on gas, food, and lodging for the 40-hour, round-trip
drive, than the information call cost. Kallstrom replied that he
"just wanted to talk to[:::::::] Kallstrom was asked why he didn't
attempt to access the internet to locate | phone
number or address. He stated that he did not have access or know
anyone who had access to the internet. He was then asked why he
did not attempt to go to a public library and access the internet
from there. Kallstrom responded that it would have taken too much
time.

b6
When Kallstrom was arrested, he had been seen taking b7C
handcuffs on and off. When asked about that, Kallstrom stated he
was "just playing" with the handcuffs. He advised that he bought
the handcuffs approximately four weeks ago. he also advised that
the weapons found in his truck were for his protection. Kallstrom
stated that he needed protection from the Aryan Nations. He said
that the Aryan Nations was a dangerous organization, but, he did
not know this first-hand, he only knew of their reputation.

Kallstrom again stated that he "would like to see
Wickstrom dead and| |

Kallstrom stated that he considered himself a "minister
and judge between right and wrong". People "should be judged by
those in the proper position”.

The purpose of Kallstrom's visit to Michigan was to '"pray
for| |He stated he was willing to "take the risk to talk to
| |if she could be located".

Kallstrom advised he knew of Leroy Marquiss. Marquiss
testified against Kallstrom at Kallstrom's PPO hearing in 2004.
Kallstrom came to Bay City, Michigan, in 2004 to fight the PPO b6
order. Kallstrom wanted to argue the PPO order, because he "did b7c
not want it on his record!". While in the Bay City area, Kallstrom
met with| | Kallstrom also met with lon
Sunday July 31, 2005, two days before his arrest. He stated that
he and| |"talked about scripture" and have "become
friends". However, Kallstrom did not stay with |while
in the Bay City area.

Kallstrom stated that he slept in his truck at the rest
stop on Interstate 75, and then at the Shell station on Pinconning
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Road. When asked what he did while he was in the Bay City area,
Kallstrom advised that he prayed, ate, and slept. SA[:::E::]
estimated that Kallstrom spent an average of three hours per day
eating. Based on a 24-hour day, that meant 21 hours were spent
sleeping or praying at the rest stop. Kallstrom advised that
"seemed about right".

i d that he asked | | for help i
locating But, |did not help

bé
n b7¢C

Kallstrom. Kallstrom stated that he "did not think |

wanted me around Sunday night".

Kallstrom stated he "would be fine if Wickstrom was
killed". Kallstrom admitted that he "could have killed Wickstrom

when he knew where Wickstrom lived". He knew that Wickstrom lived

in a home in Essexville, Michigan. In the summer of 2004
Kallstrom had driven by the house while Wickstrom and[:::i:::]
were living there.

As a "minister of the word", Kallstrom said he could not

kill Wickstrom. However, he called Wickstrom a "false preacher".

Realizing that he was going to miss a scheduled court
appearance in Oklahoma on Monday morning, Kallstrom attempted to
call his attorney,| | of the Price Law
Firm, Tulsa, Oklahoma, to inform him that he would not be able to
attend the hearing.

The camouflage clothing that was found in Kallstrom'
truck was to be used "in case he needed it to talk to
Kallstrom stated that he would "do whatever it takes to talk to

He has owned the camouflage clothing "for years". There

0N

b6
b7C

"may be some dirt" on the camouflage clothing. A ski mask was also

found in Kallstrom's truck. Kallstrom advised he has "never worn"

the ski mask and that he believed urchased it. The ski mask
was painted for "camouflage for battle". He said he threw the ski

mask in the truck "right before" he left Oklahoma.

Kallstrom rents the home he lives in. He was not certain

who was the management company.

Kallstrom and Wickstrom have known each other from the
early-1970s. Kallstrom advised that he "taught Wickstrom a lot".
But, Kallstrom no longer considers Wickstrom a "good man".
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Kallstrom is a minister in the Mission of Jesus Christ
Church. The church has locations in Oklahoma and Missouri. The
main location is 17540 East 112th Street North, Owasso, Oklahoma.

' While in Pinconnin Kallstrom went to the Post Office
| | Kallstrom asked a female
postal employee for| [residence, but, the employee
refused to give it out. Kallstrom told the post office employee
that he needed to contact]| |regarding a famil b6
reunion. Kallstrom did not tell the employee that he was b7C

[ IHe stated he was hoping to get the opportunity to
approach at the post office.

Kallstrom admitted that he came to the Bay
City/Pinconning area earlier than Sunday, which is contrary to what
he originally stated. Kallgtrom knew that| |was in

nconning area becausd had received a letter from
with a Pinconning return address.

Kallstrom stated that he had never met Leroy Marquiss,
nor had he vandalized Marquiss' car.

The night of the fire at the Marguiss Furniture store,
Kallstrom claimed that he had checked into a Holiday Inn in St.
Louis, Missouri. He advised that he was in St. Louis so he could
drive to Joplin, Missouri, to attempt to gain employment at Lowe's.
He said the garden manager was a woman and the store manager was a
man. But, he was unable to remember either one of their names.

When asked about the Holiday Inn receipt found in his
car, Kallstrom advised that he used to keep all of his receipts,
but someone "stole his receipts out of his house". He statef:zfif]

he kept this specific receipt because after he spoke with SA
| fregarding the fire at the Marquiss Furniture Store, he
knew he would be suspected and contacted by the police.

Kallstrom advised that he "always carried diesel fuel" in b6
his truck. p7C

Kallstrom admitted that he saw | bkt her
home in Essexville during the summer of 2004.

When asked if Kallstrom set the fire at the Marquiss
Furniture Store, he responded that would not come home if
she knew I (Kallstrom) did anything." Kallstrom was then asked if
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he was in the area to kill Wickstrom, to which he replied: "If
something happened to Wickstrom,l would know it would be me."

Kallstrom obtained Wickstrom's P.0O. box from a friend who
had access to the internet. However, Kallstrom stated earlier that
he did not know of anyone who had access to the internet.

Kallstrom stated that he had not been to the
Rhodes/Plnconnlng area before the weekend.

Kallstrom stated that was always a good woman
until she met Jim Wickstrom."

The FD-395 will be maintained in the 1A section of the
file.
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PELP Date: : Weight Code *
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Number of Hostages: Dismantlement Date: Child located/identified Date:
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Name Race * Sex | Date of Birth Social Security No. (if available)
KETH ElgenNE KALLSTROM | ™ | olzofraug
For Indictments/Convictions only: TN
Subject related to an LCN, Asian Organized Crime (AOC), Italian Organized Crime (IOC), Russian/Eastern European, Caribbean, or Nigerian Organized Crime Group -
Complete FD-515a, Side 1 Blocks A-E mandatory, F-H as appropriate.
[] Subject related to an OC/Drug Organization, a VCMO Program National Gang Strategy target group, or a VCMO Program National Priority Initiative target group -

Complete FD-515a, Side 1 Blocks A-C only.

X Additional information may be added by attaching another form or a plain sheet of paper for additional entries.

» See codes on reverse side.

Serial No. of FD-515

v Requires that an explanation be attached and loaded into ISRAA for recovery over $1m and PELP over $5, disruption, dismantlemenT, ana arig SeiZumres.

b3
b7E
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Page « 1. <« 08/22/05 12:12:59
08/22/2005 *kkkkdkkkkkdddkik COMPLAINT **¥kkkkkkkkkkik
SENSITIVE / UNCLASSIFIED
Case Number: Stat Agent Name: Report Date: 08/22/2005 b3
Serial No.: Stat Agent SOC.: Accom Date.: 08/02/2005 bé
b7C
Does Accomplishment Involve Assisting Agents SOC Subject Name b7E
Drugs . « « « « ¢« v+ v« v . . . N | KALLSTROM, KEITH, EUGENE
A Fugitive. « v « « v v v « . N |
Bankruptcy Fraud. . . . . . . : N |
Computer Fraud/Abuse. . . . . : N | RA Squad Task Force
Corruption of Public Officials: N | Sees mmes eemesecee-
Money Laundering. . . . . . . N | BCRA CT4

Sub. Invest. Asst by Other FOs: 1 = Used, but did not help
2 = Helped, Minimally
Investigative Assistance or Technique Used 3 = Helped, Substantially
R et E e L L L L L L L L LT LR 4 = Absolutely Essential
FINAN ANALYST LAB DIV EXAMS UCO-GROUP I FT. MON-NRCSC
AIRCRAFT ASST LAB FIELD SUP UCO-GROUP 11 FOR LANG ASST
COMPUTER ASST PEN REGISTERS UCO-OTHER NON FBI LAB EX

CONSEN MONITR
ELSUR/FISC
ELSUR/III

ENG FIELD SuP
ENG TAPE EXAM
LEGATS ASST.
EVIDNCE PURCH

PHOTO COVERGE
POLYGRAPH
SRCH WAR EXEC
SHOW MONEY
SOG ASST

SWAT TEAM
TECH AG/EQUIP
TEL TOLL RECS

NCAVC/VI-CAP
CRIM/NS INTEL
CRIS NEG-FED
CRIS NEG-LOC
ERT ASST
BUTTE-ITC
SAVANNAH-ITC
POC-WRCSC

VICT-WITN COOR
[0 WANTED FLYR
SARS

CART

ASSET FORF PRO
FORF SUPPORT P
TFOS/CTD

INFORMANT/CW
Complaint is for Federal/Local/International (F/L/I)... : L
Civil Rico Complaint (Y/N)..eeeeeerennnnerenennuannaenaat N
United States Code Violation

Section Counts

SENSITIVE / UNCLASSIFIED




X . 7-16-02)

Yuad supervisor approval

please initiat)

Accomplishment Report

Accomplishment must be reported and loaded into ISR

within 30 days from date of accomplishment)

AAI

Date Prepared
Date Loaded

Data Loader’s Initials

b3
b6
b7C

b7E

Accomplishment involves:
(check all that apply) File Number Investigative Assistance or Technique Used
Drugs Ol 1-Used, but did not help 3 - Helped, substantially
A FEugitive 2 -Helped, minimally 4 - Absolutely essential
g a I For Sub. Invest. Assist. by other FO (s) indicate A,B,C,D for corresponding FO
Bankruptcy Fraud 0 Stat Agent Soc. Sec. No.
Computer Fraud/Abuse 0O | Rate FO IAT Rate FO IAT Rate FO AT Rate FO AT
P . ) A Fin. Analyst Lab. Div. Exam UCO - Groupl Ft. Mon.- ITC
Corruption of Public Officials ] Stat Agent Nam - -
Money Laundering O <! yame Alrcraft Asst, Lab. Field Sup UCO - Group 1I For. Lang Asst.
Sub InvestAsstby FO (s) [ Sk Computer Pen Registers UCO - Nat. Back Non FBI Lab Ex
RA Squad Consen Mon. Photo Cover. NCAVC / Vi - CAP Vict-Witn Coor
Asst. FO(s) _, _, _, __
A B C D BLRA Elsur / FISC Polygraph Crim/NS Intel Asst 10 Wanted Fiye
Task Foroe Assisting Agents Soc. Sec. No. X Elsur /T. I Search Warrant Crisis Neg. - Fed.
1 Eng. Field Spt| Show Money Crisis Neg. - Local
- Eng. Tape Ex SOG Asst. ERT Asst.
Name: Legats Asst. Swat Team Butte - ITC Forf Support Proj
2. - - Evid Purchase Tech. Ag/Equip . Sav-ITC
Name: InflCW Info Phone Toll Red Poc - ITC
A. Complaint/ Information / Indictment F. Conviction J. Civil Rico Matters Date:
[[JFederal [] Local []International O Federal [J Local ] International Also Complete "Section G"
COmp]alnt Date: Conviction Date: Other Civil Matters Date:
Check if Civil Rico Complaint [7] Subject Description Code: (__)e Judgment ___ _ ______*°
Inf tion Date: ) — Judicial Outcome °X
niormation Date: For 6F, G, H-Include Agency Code Amount $
Indictment Date: i
[ Felony or [0 Misdemeanor Suspension: Years Months
B. Locate/ Arrest O Plea or [ Trial
[ Federal T Local [] International State: Judicial District: K. Administrative Sanction Date:
Subject Priority: A B [JcC Subject Description Code *
Locate Date: 0% ;! OZE & 2008~ G. U.S. Code Violation gpgijspension ll_:e]nggr:manent
Arrest Date: 09,\. o2, \l 2003 Required for sections A,B,Fand J [J Debarment or
[ Subject Resisted Arrest (Federal Only) ) [] Injunction  Year. Months
3 Subject Arrested was Armed Tile Section # Counts :
\WEAPoORS K Y L. Asset Seizure Date:
C. Summons Date: Ex PLosivEs =< 1\ " Asset Forfeiture Date:
[0 Federal [ Local CATS # Mandatory
— Circle below one of the three asset forfeiture:
D. Recovery/Restitution/PELP X Admin, Civil Judicial, or Criminal
[ Federal [ Local [] International Do not indicate $ value in Section D
Recovery Date:
H. Sentence Date: . I . . -
Code * v’ Amount $ © M. Acquittal/Dismissal/Pretrial Diversion
.-———/ Sentence Type: , , ¢ ircl Date:
Code' — Amount § In Jail: Years Months (circle one) Date:
Restitution Date: —— Suspended: Years Months Drua Sei /
[J Court Ordered [ Pretrial Diversion Probation: Years Months N. Drug elzu:es Date:
Code * v Amount $ Fines: $ Drug Code
. H L]
PELP Date: Weight Code
Code *® v Amount $ FOIN
E— . Disruption/Dismantlement: v’ Do not indicate $ value in Section D
E. Hostage(s) Released Date: Disrupti .
ption Date: g .
Released by: [ Terrorist [] Other . O. Child Victim Information
Number of Hostages: Dismantlement Date: Child located/identified Date:
Completion of FD-515a Side 2 Mandatory [ Living [0 Deceased
P. Subject Information - Required for all blocks excluding block D (Recovery/PELP), blocks E, I, L, and N.
Name Race * Sex | Date of Birth Social Security No. (if available)
KEmt Eng ede AL sTRaMm " | ™ ] 1o {zo]iemg

b3

For Indictments/Convictions only:

Subject related to an LCN, Asian Organized Crime (AOC), ltalian Organized Crime (IOC), Russian/Eastern European, Caribbean, or Nigerian Organized Crime Group -
Complete FD-515a, Side 1 Blocks A-E mandatory, F-H as appropriate.

Complete FD-515a, Side 1 Blocks A-C only.

"0 Subject related to an OC/Drug Organization, a VCMO Program National Gang Strategy target group, or a VCMO Program National Priority Initiative target group -

b7E

5

X Additional information may be added by attaching another form or a plain sheet of paper for additional entries.

* See codes on reverse side.

Serial, No. of FD-515

v/ Requires that an explanation be attached and loaded into ISRAA for recovery over $1m and PELP over $5, disruption, dismantlemel -




Page.. 1

08/22/2005

Case Number
Serial No.3

Does Accomplishment Involve

Drugs . . « .« ¢« ¢+ « =« =« . . . N
A Fugitive. . « « « . « « . . = N
Bankruptcy Fraud. . . . . . . : N
Computer Fraud/Abuse. . . . . : N
Corruption of Public Officials: N
. Money Laundering. . . . . . . : N

Sub. Invest. Asst by Other FOs:

08/22/05

kkkkkkkdkkkkkkkhrr ARREST e sde ke de e e ke e e de K e e de de e

SENSHHHYE- / UNCLASSIFIED

Stat Agent Name:
Stat Agent SOC.:

Investigative Assistance or Technique Used

FINAN ANALYST
AIRCRAFT ASST
COMPUTER ASST
CONSEN MONITR
ELSUR/FISC
ELSUR/III

ENG FIELD SUP
ENG TAPE EXAM
LEGATS ASST.
EVIDNCE PURCH
INFORMANT/CW

LAB DIV EXAMS
LAB FIELD SUP
PEN REGISTERS
PHOTO COVERGE
POLYGRAPH
SRCH WAR EXEC
SHOW MONEY
SOG ASST

SWAT TEAM
TECH AG/EQUIP
TEL TOLL RECS

UCO-GRQUP I FT. MON-NRCSC
UCO-GROUP II FOR LANG ASST
UCO-OTHER NON FBI LAB EX

NCAVC/VI-CAP

CRIM/NS INTEL

CRIS NEG-FED
CRIS NEG-LOC

VICT-WITN COOR
10 WANTED FLYR
SARS
CART

ERT ASST ASSET FORF PRO
BUTTE-ITC FORF SUPPORT P
SAVANNAH-ITC TFOS/CTD
POC-WRCSC

Assisting Agents SOC

|
l
|
i | RA  Squad
|
|

Report Date: 08/22/2005
Accom Date.: 08/02/2005

Subject Name

KALLSTROM, KEITH, EUGENE

BCRA  CT4

"

Used, but did not help
Helped, Minimally
Helped, Substantially
Absolutely Essential

HAW NN -
un n

un

Task Force

12:11:45

b3
bé
b7C
b7E

Arrest is for Federal, Local, or International (F/L/I).. : L
Arrest Subject Priority (A/B/C)eveeeceercccsecacsnnaccns : C
Did Subject Resist (Y/N)uuieeeevesonnvncancncancacnanaas = N

Was Subject Armed (Y/N)
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Page « 1

08/22/2005

TTSENSLEIME / UNCLASSIFIED

Case Number:
Serial No.:

Stat Agent Name:
Stat Agent SOC.:

Does Accomplishment Involve
Drugs « v « + ¢« ¢ s+ ¢« « « « « 2 N
A Fugitive. « « « « « ¢« ¢« « « s N
Bankruptcy Fraud. . . « . . . ¢ N
Computer Fraud/Abuse. . . . . H
Corruption of Public Officials: N
Money Laundering. . . . . . . : N

Sub. Invest. Asst by Other FOs:

Investigative Assistance or Technique Used

FINAN ANALYST LAB DIV EXAMS UCO-GROUP 1
AIRCRAFT ASST LAB FIELD SuUP UCO-GROUP 11
COMPUTER ASST PEN REGISTERS UCO-OTHER

CONSEN MONITR

PHOTO COVERGE

NCAVC/VI-CAP

ELSUR/FISC POLYGRAPH CRIM/NS INTEL
ELSUR/III SRCH WAR EXEC CRIS NEG-FED
ENG FIELD SUP SHOW MONEY CRIS NEG-LOC
ENG TAPE EXAM SOG ASST ERT ASST
LEGATS ASST. SWAT TEAM BUTTE-ITC
EVIDNCE PURCH TECH AG/EQUIP SAVANNAH-ITC
INFORMANT/CW TEL TOLL RECS POC-WRCSC

FT. MON-NRCSC
FOR LANG ASST
NON FBI LAB EX
VICT-WITN COOR
10 WANTED FLYR
SARS

CART

ASSET FORF PRO
FORF SUPPORT P
TFOS/CTD

ek dede e de ok kR KKK kR KKk LOCATE Kk dedodok ke kke ok kek ke

Assisting Agents SOC

08/22/05 12:12:05

Report Date: 08/22/2005 b3
Accom Date.: 08/02/2005 b6
b7C

Subject Name b7E

KALLSTROM, KEITH, EUGENE

RA Squad Task Force

BCRA CT4

Used, but did not help
Helped, Minimally
Helped, Substantially
Absolutely Essential

N W
nounon

Locate is for Federal, Local, or International (F/L/I)...: L

Subject Priority (A/B/C)uuceerccceiinercenneccnnnnnnnnns

SENSITIVE / UNCLASSIFIED
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(Rev. 01-31-2003) '

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE | Date: 08/18/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Adgency
Contact: SA

Approved By:

Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title: James P. Wickstrom

Synopsis: To document names and phone numbers retrieved off
of the cell phone of Keith Kallstrom.

Details: On 08/02/2005, Keith Kallstrom was arrested in
Pinconning, MI, in possession of a loaded AR<15 assault rifle,
a loaded Remington 870 shotgun, a lizggd/Beretta 9mm pistol,
four (4) live hand grenades, camouflafe clothing, a ski mask,

handcuffs, and hundreds of rounds~of ammunition.

Kallstrom was fo to have two cellular phone
numbers: 918-852-1717 a 918-850-0065.

Kallstrqm/gggled he was in the area to find! |

| so the two could talk about _
Previously, Kallstrom had told
others, ineluding SAs]| |
that he would like to have| [pack and see
James Wickstrom's ministry fail. Kallstrom had also made
threats to Wickstrom in the past.

Kallstrom and Wickstrom had been friends and were
both self-ordained preachers. However, Kallstrom stated he
did not agree with Wickstrom's violent tendencies and
separated himself from Wickstrom's teachings. But, Kallstrom
continued his preachings in Oklahoma.

A search of Kallstrom's car at the arrest site
revealed a cellular phone, with a charger, plugged into the
cigarette lighter. The following names and telephone numbers

X

W

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

b6
b7C

b3
b7E




‘ ﬂ: ’
To: "I" J.I')

Detroit From: ™ Detroit

Re: | ] 08/18/2005 b3
. b7E

were retrieved upon a preliminary, cursory examination of the
cellular phone:

Listed in the "Missed" section:

Nane Phone Number

b6
P b7C

///,/ b7E
ectio

/
Listed in the "Contacts" s/////n.
Name Number

A mors/détailed examination of the cellular phone
will be made t9o”determine all incoming and outgoing calls, as
well as any 9ther contacts.

*"
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence:

ROUTINE Date: 08/18/2005

To: Detroit

From: Detroit
Bay City Resjident Agencv

Contact: SA

Approved By:

Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title: James P. Wickstrom

Synopsis:

To document conversation with Oklahoma City

Division, Tulsa Resident Agency, SA| |regarding
joint FBI/ATF search conducted at Keith Kallstrom's residence.

Administrative: Reference telcall between SA |
Detroit Division, Bay City Resident Agency, and SA|

Oklahoma City Division, Tulsa Resident Agency,
regarding the joint FBI/ATF search warrant in Broken Arrow,
OK, at Keith Kallstrom's residence.

Details: On 08/04/2005, S spoke with s3 |
regarding the results of a joint FBI/ATF search at Keith
Kallstrom's residence in Broken Arrow, OK.

s Jinformed sA[[___Jthat no explosives or
guns were found in Kallstrom's residence. However,

larrived at the residence during the search and

advised that| |had given him a handgun approximately

two months

prior. lalso stated that he knew
did not like James Wickstrom.

A poem was found in the resid eé’éﬁzzéled "Bone
Collector". A license plate‘giﬁ,a&sﬁ’iﬁﬁated that read
"YAHWEH" and had a confeég;at flag on it. The book The

Hunter, was

S

also loca 1inside Kallstrom's residence.

also informed SA[::::]that ATF had

collected all evidence and would be shipping it to the Flint
office of ATF.

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

bé
b7C

b6
b7C

b6
b7C

b3
b7E




© - E{ 'lm 'Il
To: Detroit

Detroit From:

Re:l |08/18/2005 b3
b7E

*
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(Rev. 01-31-2003)

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE

To: Counterterrorism

Detroit

From: Detroit

Date: 08/21/2005

Rapids RA
[ I

Attn:
Attn:

Grand
SSA

Bay City Resident Agency

Contact: SA

Approved By:

Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title:

Synopsis:
Kallstrom on 08/02/2005.

Details:

Broken Arrow, OK, 74011,

Keith Eugene Kallstrom,

James P. Wickstrom;

To inform[::::]of incident involving Keith Eugene

8217 South Peach Street,
telephone numbers 918-852-1717 and

918-850-0065, has been interviewed by FBI SAs of the Detroit
Division, Bay City Resident Agency on multiple occasions

|[During the

interviews,

Kallstrom sought the assistance of the FBI in

locating

and having her

prosecuted for adultery.
that he had information

Kallstrom also informed the Agents
on James Wickstrom and would like to

assist in the investigation.

On 08/02/2005,
lot of a McDonald's,

Kallstrom was observed in the parking

located at the Pinconning Road exit off

of Interstate 75, practicing putting on and taking off

handcuffs.
911.
confronted Kallstrom.

Nearby travelers noticed the activity and called
Bay County Sheriff's deputies arrived on the scene and

Kallstrom told the deputies he was in the area to

see|

|who had left him for Wickstrom.

Kallstrom informed the deputies that he only wanted to speak

wit
Wickstrom.

nd that he had no intentions of harming her or
When asked why he had the handcuffs, Kallstrom

told the deputies he had them "in case he needed to brin

with him".

25 e

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

b3
bé
b7C
b7E




To: Counterterrorism From: Detroit
Re: | | 08/21/2005

Kallstrom gave the deputies consent to search his
car, a gray 1985 Ford, crew-cab, pick-up truck, Oklahoma
license plate X12931, VIN 2FTJW351XFCB27426, registered to
Church of the Redeemer King. Upon searching the truck,
deputies found a loaded AR-15 assault rifle, a loaded
Remington 870 shotgun, a loaded Beretta 9mm pistol, hundreds
of rounds of ammunition, camouflage clothing, a ski mask, and
a camouflage tarp. A green, metal ammunition can was also
located in the rear seat of the truck. When the deputies
opened the can, they discovered four live hand grenades. At
that time, the deputies ceased the search of the car, placed
Kallstrom under arrest, and called in the Michigan State
Police (MSP) bomb squad.

The MSP bomb squad cleared the vehicle and removed
the grenades. The grenades were rendered safe with a PAN
device and the all-clear was given for the search of the
vehicle to commence. The grenade fragments were sent to the
MSP Crime Lab for further analysis.

The search of the vehicle recovered numerous
handwritten documents, a large Bible containing handwritten
notes in the margins and loose pieces of paper inserted
between pages. The notes contained names and phone numbers of
Kallstrom's friends and associates, as well as the homée and
business addresses of Leroy Marquiss. Marquiss was the owner
of a furniture store in Essexville, MI, where Wickstrom used
to preach. Marquiss also testified against Kallstrom in a
personal protection order (PPO) hearing initiated by

| The furniture store was intentionally set on fire

approximately one and one-half years ago. Kallstrom had been
interviewed previously about the fire |

but denied any involvement and provided a lengthy, out-
of-state alibi. However, when he was asked about the fire
subsequent to his arrest, Kallstrom admitted to being in the
Essexville/Bay City, MI, area around the time of the fire, but
denied any involvement in the fire. Kallstrom's cellular
phone was also recovered from his truck.

Kallstrom was interviewed by SA| land Msp Det.
Sgt.| lat the Bay County jail. Kallstrom told

the investigators that he was in the area for the purpose of
locating] hnd attempting to | |

|[However, on at least three occasions during the

interview, Kallstrom told the inv i ors that he would like
to see Wickstrom dead and have returned to him. 1In
previous interviews with Kallstrom and other known associates
of Wickstrom, it was learned that Kallstrom had wanted to kill

b3
b7E

b3
bé
b7C
b7E

b6
b7C



To:

CounterterrorIsm From: Detroit

Re:|

| 08/21/2005

b3
b6
b7C

Wickstrom and to take| b7E

Kallstrom advised that he _had the weapons for

protection. He stated that he knewlleas involved with
the Aryan Nations (AN) and that he was afraid he may be hurt
by AN if he attempted to talk with her. Kallstrom initially

told

the investigators that he had possessed the grenades for b6

approximately 30 years, and he was uncertain as to how they _b7cC
were place in his truck. He then recanted and stated that he
received the grenades from Wickstrom a

nlaced the agrenades in his truck afteri |

in OK.

A joint FBI/ATF search warrant was executed at

Kallstrom's residence in Broken Arrow, OK, on 08/04/2005. No
other weapons or explosives was found. However, documents and
bibles were recovered. A poem entitled "Bone Collector"” and a

book

entitled The Hunter were recovered as well.

| |arrived at the residence during the b6

search and informed the Agents that Kallstrom had given him a b7cC
handgun approximately two months prior.




To: Counterterrorism From: Detroit
Re: | 08/21/2005

LEAD (s) :
Set Lead 1: (Info)

COUNTERTERRORISM

AT

Read and clear.
Set Lead 2: (Info)
DETROIT

AT GRAND RAPTDS, MT

Read and clear.

*

b3
b7E
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(Rev. 01-31-2003)

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 08/21/2005
To: Oklahoma City Attn: Tulsa RA
SA
Detroit

From: Detroit
Bay City Resident Agency
Contact: SA

Approved By:
Drafted By:

Case ID #: FPerrdttre—

Title: James P. Wickstrom;

Synopsis: To request copy of return from search warrant
executed at the residence of Keith Eugene Kallstrom.

Details: On 08/02/2005, Keith Eugene Kallstrom was arrested
in Bay County, MI, on multiple federal and local weapons and
kidnaping charges.

A search of his vehicle returned a loaded AR-15, a
loaded Remington 870 shotgun, a loaded Beretta 9mm pistol,
four live hand grenades, hundreds of rounds of ammunition,
camouflage clothing, a ski mask, and handcuffs.

Kallstrom stated his intepntions were to locate[::::]

| owever, during
interview subsequent to his arrest] |informed SA
that he would like to see James Wickstrom dead and have

2% F«-

b3
bé
b7C
b7E

returned to him.

As a result, a joint FBI/ATF search warrant was
executed at Kallstrom's residence in Broken Arrow, OK. No
weapons or explosives were located, but numerous documents and
bibles were recovered.

These documents and bibles could provide valuable
information into Kallstrom's motives and well as the
identities and intentions of those who may be involved with
the white supremacy/anti-government movement and the Aryan
Nations.

b6
b7C
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To: Oklahoma Citv™ From: Detroit .
Re: | | 08/21/2005

LEAD (s) :
Set Lead 1: (Action)

OKLAHOMA CITY

AT TULSA, OK

Please obtain a copy of the return for the search
warrant executed at the residence of Keith Eugene Kallstrom
and forward to the Detroit Division, Bay City Resident Agency,
Attn: SA|

*"

b3
b7E

b6
b7cC
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FD-302 (Rev. 10-6-95)

1

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Date of transcription 08/24/2005

James P. Wickstrom, date of birth October 7, 1942, home
telephone number 989-879-1089, cellular telephone n r -598-
5017, was contacted via telephone by Special Agent
Wickstrom was aware of the identity of the interviewing Agent due
to previous encounters. Wickstrom provided the following
information:

SA asked Wickstrom if he would be available to meet bé
with he and SS at 11:30 a.m. on Monday August 29, b7C

2005, at the Linwood Corner? Restaurant, Linwood, Michigan.

Wickstrom inquired what SSA| and SA wanted to discuss.
Wickstrom advised that he wou e able to meet with SSA[::::::]and
SAl that the above time and location.

Wickstrom sent an email to SSA and inquired (é)
if SA[::::]had seen the email.

Wickstrom inguired if Keith Kallstrom was still in Bay
City jail. He advised that the he thought Kallstrom was to be
moved to Ypsilanti.

Investigation on 08/24/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)

File # Date dictated 08/24/2005 22
b7C

by SA b7E

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBIL. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency;
it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency.
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bé
b7C
U.S. Department of Justice
Federal Bureau of Investigation
* In Reply Refer o 115 First Street
File No. . : . b3
Bay City, Michigan 48708 bTE
September 1, 2005
Honorable Stephen J. Murphy
United States Attorney
211 West Fort Street
Suite 2300
Detroit, Michigan 48226
Attention: | | iSc
Assistant United States Attorney
RE: James P. Wickstrom
Act of Terrorism - Domestic Terrorism
- Violent Crime Predicate Offense
Dear Sir:
The purpose of this letter is to summarize the above
case for the purpose of issuing a Federal Grand Jury (FGJ)
subpoena.
bé
b7C
b7D
Inl moved from|
[Michigan. |
new address was listed as|
M1
1 - Address
(1) - Detroit
5 b3
b6
b7C

b7E




€

The writer requests to have a FGJ subpoena issued to

Sincerely yours,

Daniel D. Roberts

Spec:

al Agent in Charge

bé

b7C
b7D
b7E

b3
b6
b7C
b7E

Bv:

SUPEervisory senior Resi

bé
b7C

ent Agent
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(Rev. 01-31-2003) .

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Precedence: ROUTINE Date: 09/12/2005
To: Detroit
From: Detroit

Bay City Resident Agencv
Contact: ©SA

Approved By:

Drafted By:

Case ID #:

Title: James P. Wickstrom;

Synopsis: To document receipt of material from Bay County
Sheriff's Office regarding a letter sent from Keith Kallstrom
to Judge Sheila Condren, Rogers County District Court, Rogers
County, Oklahoma.

Enclosure(s) : One copy of a letter sent from'
|Rogers County Sheriff's Office to Captain

Bay County Sheriff's Office; one copy of a letter sent
from Keith Kallstrom to Judge Sheila Condren.

Details: Keith Kallstrom was arrested on 08/02/2005 in the
Pinconning, MI, area. Kallstrom was armed with multiple
loaded weapons, including an AR-15 and a shotgun, as well as
four live hand grenades and a set of handcuffs. Camouflage
clothing, a camouflage tarp, and a ski mask were also
recovered from his vehicle. When Kallstrom was arrested, he
told the arresting officers and SA that he was in the
Pinconning area to find so he could
talk with_her and trv to convince her to come with him back to
Oklahoma.| lhad left Kallstrom and was living

| |James Wickstrom, the World Chaplain of the Aryan Nations.

It is the opinion of sa| lthat Kallstrom was in

the area to locate Wickstrom andl bnd either
kill Wickstrom and take] [with him, or to kill
Wickstrom, | lJand himself.
However, Kallstrom was arrested before he could locate either
Wickstrom| |
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To: Detroit From’ Detroit - l

Re: | J09/12/2005

On or about 09/03/2005, the Bay County Sheriff's
Office received a letter from| Rogers
County Sheriff's Office, Rogers County, Oklahoma. The letter
described a letter that Keith Kallstrom had sent to Judge
Sheila Condren.

Keith Kallstrom sent an envelope tol |

I [OK;
postmarked 08/22/2005. Inside the envelope was a letter, an
envelope, and a note from Kallstrom tof lasking her

to sent the enclosed letter and envelope to Judge Condren.

The letter and envelope were sent to Judge Condren,
postmarked 08/26/2005, from Tulsa, OK.

In the letter sent to Judge Condren, Kallstrom asks
for Judge Condren to dismissl | For

background, Kallstrom's

07/29/2005. Kallstrom also describeg|

| failure to pay income tax to the IRS and the

State of Oklahoma. Kallstrom al accuses| of
perjury during| |and living "in fornication"

with James Wickstrom.

Essentially, Kallstrom is attempting to use Judge
Condren's influence and power to get back to
Oklahoma.

The enclosed items will be maintained in the 1A
section of the file.
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Date of transcription 09/16/2005

2b6 .

b7C

|date of birthl |was
interviewed telephonically at her business, Marquiss Water
Conditioning, 644 West Center Road, Essexville, Michigan, telephone
number 989-892-3805 ] |[was advised of the identity of the
interviewing Agent and the nature of the interview, and provided
the following information:

|[was advised by the writer that he was _now

assigned to the investigation previously assigned to SA |
|

‘ [::::::::]inquired as to the status of the arson
investigation because the insurance company was only going to pay

her once the investigation was concluded.

stated that she believed the fire set at her and
her husband's furniture store was perpetrated by the same person

who started £he fire on Center Road. She identified this person as

She advised that the same wick had been found at

me as well as at her furniture store and at the location

of the enter Road fire.

Baptist church o ad.
The church held a rally the week before the fire at

i store. She advised that the rally was aimed at| |
because they allowed Jim Wickstrom to preach at thelr

rurniture store.

| End her husband planned on constructing a new
building on the site of the building lost in the fire.| |
stated that she and her husband were planning on getting out of the
furniture husiness and only continuing the water conditioning
operation. advised that the furniture business grossed
approximately $2,000.00 the previous year.

Leroy Marquiss had a_stroke and was recovering, but he
was only at "ninety percent". | |advised that L. Marquiss
had the stroke due to the stress of the fire and the subsequent
investigation.

Investigation on 09/15/2005 a Bay City, Michigan (telephonically)
File # Date dictated 09/16/2005

by SA
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